
 
 

 
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 

 
Board of Selectmen Agenda 
August 10, 2023, @ 6:00 PM  

VILLAGE FIRE STATION 
32 North Street 

 
 

This is an in-person meeting but the public may join in Zoom webinar format 
Join by computer or mobile device and click on: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86944613368   
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 869 4461 3368 

By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US 
 

 

1. Call to Order. 

2. Approve the July 27, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes. 

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of 
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.) 

4. Review of the Town Hall subcommittee report.  

5. Recognition of the resignation of the RSU 21 School Board member and 
discussion of the replacement process.  

6. Presentation of proposed November 2023 ballot questions:  

a. Comprehensive Plan updates.  

b. Street Opening Permit updates. 

7. New cruiser for the Police Department. 

8. Authorize carryforwards from FY23.  

9. Dyke Road Right of Way Agreement.  
 

10. Request to waive Planning Board fees for the upcoming Beachwood neighborhood 
by the Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust. 

   

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86944613368
https://zoom.us/join


11. Boat Launch presentation and updates.  

12. Update on the Pier Rd Causeway project. 

13. Update on the Cape Porpoise Pier project. 

14. Request for Street Opening permit by George Burr & Sons Inc. for  

a. Langsford Road 

b. Ocean Avenue 

15. Maine Municipal Association Annual Election. 

16. Appoint Carolyn Muse to the Shade Tree Committee with an expiration date of 
June 2024.  

17. Appoint Mike West to the Board of Assessment Review with an expiration date of 
June 2026.  

18. Appoint Ella Boxall to the Climate Action Task Force with an expiration date of 
December 31, 2023.  

19. Other Business.   

20. Approve the August 10, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. 

21. Adjournment.  



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen Meeting 

July 27, 2023 
6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending:  Mike Weston, Sheila Matthews-Bull, Allen Daggett, Jon Dykstra, 
Marybeth Gilbert. 

1. Call to Order:

Chairman Weston called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

2. Approve the July 13, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the
July 13, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

3. Approve the July 27, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the
July 27, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

4. Executive Session per MRSA 1, §405-6C to consider the condition, acquisition, or
the use of real or personal property.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to enter
Executive Session per MRSA 1, §405-6C to consider the condition, acquisition, or the
use of real or personal property. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

The Selectmen moved to the lounge for the Executive Session, which lasted an hour
and 10 minutes.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to leave
Executive Session. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

5. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to adjourn.
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 PM.

Submitted by  
Yanina Nickless, 
Director of Support Services 

Item 2



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Memorandum 

To:  Board of Selectmen 

Fr:  Mike Weston, Mary Beth Gilbert, and Laurie Smith 

Re: Proposal to lower the tax impact of the Town Hall construction 

Dt:  August 2, 2023 

The Town Hall Building Committee made their presentation to the Selectboard at the 
July 13, 2023, meeting. During the presentation, we discussed the current costs for the 
project were estimated at $8.8 million, assuming a 2024 construction start. The Board 
discussed ways in which we might attempt to lower the property tax impact and 
appointed the subcommittee of Mike Weston and Mary Beth Gilbert, along with Town 
Manager Laurie Smith. The members of the subcommittee met on three occasions and 
included Werner Gilliam, Chris Simeoni, and April Dufoe in these discussions. We also 
had members of the public – Alan & Jane Evelyn and James Mulvihill - reach out to 
discuss the subject with the committee.   

At the July 13 meeting, staff discussed the options of selling the current Town Hall at 6 
Elm Street, along with the use of capital reserves, to lower the bond required for 
construction. The estimate of $1,000,000 from the sale of 6 Elm Street and the use of 
$800,000 in reserves could decrease the bond amount by $1.8 million. The 
subcommittee considered other revenues that might have a similar effect.  One of the 
ideas presented was the potential to increase fees; however, upon closer examination, it 
was determined that the fee increases would not have the necessary magnitude to 
affect a reduction in a large capital cost. The committee began considering the sale of 
additional Town property. A review of a long list of Town properties found that most were 
in use or tax acquired. Due to the recent Supreme Court decision and Maine statute 
change, Towns are no longer able to gain financially from tax-acquired property sales. 
Therefore, these properties would not produce the desired effect. Upon further 
examination, the committee did find two properties that were deeded to the Town which 
could potentially be sold.  

1. 49 Beachwood – the old Town Garage site.  The lot is approximately 1 acre in
size and is assessed at $160,000.  The Town has owned it since the 1950s and
paid $1.00 for the property originally. Our initial thoughts are it could sell for at
least $200,000.

2. School Street - McCabe Parcel – adjacent to Parson Field and Recreation
Center.  The lot is approximately 8 acres in size and can access water and
sewer.  The Town purchased the property in 2014 for $385,000.  We believe it
could sell for at least $500,000.

Item 4



Another idea that was suggested by both the Evelyns and Mr. Mulvihill was the prospect 
of raising funds through naming rights in the new building. This idea was considered at 
length, including the 
perceptions of donations 
being tied to a “quid pro 
quo”, especially in a public 
building that should feel 
free from bias. The idea 
developed into the concept 
of targeting donations 
toward people who have 
contributed to the 
community. This then 
evolved into the vision of a 
memorial wall, where 
donations could recognize 
people and businesses in 
the community, such as 
the one to the right. 

 

The grander 
vision would be 
to create a mural 
wherein the 
artwork can 
recognize 
families or 
individuals, such 
as the one on 
the left. The 
committee 
imagined a 
mural that 
reflects 
Kennebunkport’s 
culture and 
heritage – 
perhaps a 
design featuring 
a boat on the 
water.    

 



Should the Board be willing to consider all of these ideas, this could result in a $3.0 
million reduction to the bonded amount.  

 
Whatever the Town borrows will need to be paid back over a 20-year period on an 
annual basis. When we examined the property tax rate impacts of three bond amounts it 
varied greatly. The average annual difference between the $8.8 million and $5.8 million 
bonds is approximately $220,000, or about $0.06 on the tax rate.  

 
In addition to these potential savings, the Town will experience naturally occurring 
reductions in debt; please see the chart below.  Between the years 2026 and 2029 (a 5-
year period), the Town will save approximately $480,000 annually in debt payments.  
Although the Town Hall bond will likely occur in the calendar year 2024, the first debt 
payment could be arranged to occur in FY 2026. By 2027, year one of the initial debt 
payment, the natural reduction in debt payments would be approximately $300,000, or a 
decrease of $0.09 in the tax rate. 

 

Town Hall Construction Cost 8,800,000$         

Sale of 6 Elm Street (1,000,000)$        
Use of Reserves (800,000)$           
Fundraising (500,000)$           
Additional Property Sales (700,000)$           

Bonds needed for project 5,800,000$         

Bond Amount Average Annual Payment Tax Impact

$ Impact 
Per 
$100,000 
value

$ Impact 
Per 
$500,000 
value

$8.8 million bond - 20 years 605,000$                           0.17$            17.23$       86.15$        

$7.0 million bond - 20 years 497,000$                           0.14$            14.15$       70.77$        

$5.8 million bond - 20 years 385,000$                           0.11$            10.96$       54.82$        

Year Project Principal Interest
2026 Wastewater 33,590.27$    1,604.23$        
2027 Police 42,254.17$    2,936.86$        
2027 Radio Tower 200,000.00$  19,380.06$      
2028 Recreation 45,000.00$    5,801.40$        
2029 Seawall 105,000.00$  26,270.83$      

Total: 425,844.44$  55,993.39$      

Grand Total 481,837.83$    

Debt Retirements - FY26 - FY29



The subcommittee recommends that the Board consider these various ways in which 
we might move forward with this important and needed project while decreasing the 
effect on Kennebunkport property owners. The ballot before voters would authorize the 
bond for the Town Hall project but also approve the sale of properties, use of reserves, 
and potential fundraising opportunities.  



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CLERK 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Board of Selectmen 

Fr: Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 

Re: RSU #21 Director vacancy  

Dt: August 3, 2023 

On July 28, 2023, Jameson Davis resigned as an RSU #21 School Board member. Her resignation is 
attached. 

Per Title 20-A §1474 3. Filling Vacancies. “The municipal officers of the municipality in which the 
director resided shall select an interim director for the municipality or subdistrict to serve until the next 
annual municipal election”. Therefore, the appointed interim director will serve until Kennebunkport’s 
annual town meeting in June 2024. I have attached a copy of the statute. 

Also attached is a basic application that interested individuals will complete and submit to the Town 
Clerk’s Office. 

The suggested process is as follows: 

1. Advertise the vacancy on our website and Facebook page as well as at the library, at town
hall, and in The Post.

2. Request that applications be submitted to the Town Clerk’s office no later than 4:30 pm on
Friday, September 1, 2023.

3. The Board of Selectmen will review the applications at the September 14, 2023, meeting. The
applicants will be asked to attend in case the Board has any clarifying questions to ask them.

4. The Board can make the decision at the September 14, 2023, meeting or wait until September
28, 2023. Keep in mind that the Board will not be able to discuss the applications outside of a
public meeting, so there may not be anything to gain by waiting until the September 28th

meeting.

Other communities, including Kennebunk, have used a process very similar to this to fill vacancies in 
the past. 

Item 5





MRS Title 20-A, §1474. VACANCIES

Generated 
10.04.2022 §1474. Vacancies |  1

§1474.  Vacancies
1. Definition of vacancy.  A vacancy on a regional school unit board occurs:
A. When the term of office of a regional school unit board director expires;  [PL 2007, c. 240,
Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]
B. When a regional school unit board director changes residency from the municipality or
subdistrict from which elected. Evidence that an individual is registered to vote in a municipality
is prima facie evidence of that individual's residency;  [PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]
C. On the death of a regional school unit board director; or  [PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13
(NEW).]
D. When a regional school unit board director resigns.  [PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13
(NEW).]

In addition to paragraphs A, B, C and D, except in municipalities having a municipal charter, when a 
director is absent without excuse from 3 consecutive regular board meetings, the regional school unit 
board may declare that a vacancy exists.
[PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]

2. Regional school unit board.  The regional school unit board shall notify the municipal officers
of the municipalities within the regional school unit of a vacancy before the annual town meeting or 
before the regular municipal election.
[PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]

3. Filling vacancies.  A vacancy on a regional school unit board must be filled according to this
subsection.

A. The municipal officers of the municipality in which the director resided shall select an interim
director for the municipality or subdistrict to serve until the next annual municipal election. The
interim director shall serve until a successor is elected and qualified.  [PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX,
§13 (NEW).]
B. The municipal officers shall provide at the next municipal or subdistrict election for the election
of a director to fill the vacancy.  [PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]

[PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW).]
SECTION HISTORY
PL 2007, c. 240, Pt. XXXX, §13 (NEW). 

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include 
the following disclaimer in your publication:
All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects 
changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 130th Maine Legislature and is current through October 1, 2022. The 
text is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the 
Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.
The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our 
goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to 
preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the 
public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

ynickless
Highlight







T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

Application for Interim RSU #21 Director 

To the Town Clerk: 

I hereby request to be considered for the interim RSU #21 School Board Director with a term 
to end in June 2024. 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant Date 

Preliminary Information 

Name (Print): _____________________________________________________ 

Residence Address: ________________________________ Phone:   _____________ 

Business Address: ________________________________ Phone:   _____________ 

Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________ 

  (if different)   _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address: _____________________________________________________ 



What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board? 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Membership in town, school or community organizations: 

Organization Dates Activities 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

_________________________  _________ __________________________________ 

Briefly list your background, skills, experience or training you would like to mention. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport?     □ Yes       □ No 

Please return the completed application to: 
Town Clerk,  

6 Elm St., P.O. Box 566,  
Kennebunkport, ME  04046 

You will be contacted upon receipt. 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



6 ELM ST, KENNEBUNKPORT, ME 04046 
T (207) 967-1614 |E MRADLEY@KENNEBUNKPORTME.GOV 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 
-INCORPORATED 1653-

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Tracey O’Roak, Werner Gilliam 

Fr: Michelle Radley, Planner 
Re: Proposed Comprehensive Plan Revisions November 2023 Update 
Dt: July 6th, 2023 

After the initial passage of the Comprehensive Plan update last November, Town Staff 
received comments and needed revisions from the State. These revisions are minor in 
nature but are required for Kennebunkport’s Comprehensive Plan to be found complete 
and consistent by the State. Please find below a description of these revisions.  

Revisions to Chapter 7 - Natural Resource 
Revisions to this chapter include an update to the date of Chapter 7, and revisions to 
farm inventory. In response to a comment from a resident, we have removed an 
incorrectly identified farm and added Five Acre Farm to this list.  

Revisions to Appendix A – Goals, Policies & Strategies  
Revisions to this appendix include an update to the date of Appendix A, and the addition 
of 10 goals and strategies per state request. These revisions are minor and do not alter 
the spirit or major content of the plan. These changes are written to include that the 
town will maintain highlighted practices such as designated growth areas, providing 
training to the CEO, providing educational materials to the community, working 
collaboratively with land trusts, and so on. These practices are embodied throughout the 
plan and need to be added in the Goals, Policies, and Strategies Appendix to achieve 
state-level completeness and consistency. Subsequently, these additions have been 
numbered, and the following strategies have been renumbered as part of this revision. 

Item 6a



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 CHAPTER 7 NATURAL RESOURCES 137 

Chapter 7 

Natural Resources 
KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 

Volume 2 

May 2022 June 2023 



Local food production is an important component of reducing the 
ecological footprint of individuals and communities. The 
ecological footprint is the impact of a person or community on the 
environment, expressed as the amount of land required to sustain 
their use of natural resources. 

Symbol Soil Type Total 
Acres 

Poorly & 
Very Poorly 

Drained 

Farmland 
Soilsa 

Forest Soils 
(Group IIB) 

AdC Adams loamy sand, 8 to 15 percent slopes 4.50 
Ba Beaches, sand 53.19 
BH Beaches, sand-Hooksan complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes 1.61 
HU Hooksan-Urban land complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes 18.16 
LnD Lyman loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes, rocky 6.26 
LyE Lyman-Rock outcrop complex, 15 to 80 percent slopes 317.14 
Pg Pits, gravel 26.57 
RoC Rock outcrop-Lyman complex, 3 to 15 percent slopes 5.59 
RoE Rock outcrop-Lyman complex, 15 to 80 percent slopes 8.55 
ShA Succotash sand, 0 to 3 percent slopes 6.37 
UH Urban land-Hooksan complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes 117.90 
W Water bodies 319.68 
Ur Urban land 32.30 

Total Acres 12,960 4,762.7 1,122.3 143.4 
a Farmland soils in Kennebunkport consist primarily of soils of statewide importance. * denotesprime agricultural soils. 

Agricultural Soils 

Less than one acre in town is considered prime farmland. As 
defined by the US Department of Agriculture, prime farmland is 
land that has the best combination of physical and chemical 
characteristics for producing food, feed, forage, fiber, and oilseed 
crop and is available for these uses. 16 

Approximately 8.7% of soils are classified designated as farmland 
of statewide importance: areas of soils that nearly meet the 
requirements for prime farmland and that economically produce 
high yields of crops when treated and managed according to 
acceptable farming methods.17 

As noted in the 2012 Comprehensive Plan, sub-optimal growing 

conditions and the high price of land are significant constraints 
on farming. However there are diverse business such as Blackrock 
Farm, Ewe and I, Frinklepond Farm Five Acre Farm, Adams 
Family Christmas Tree Farm, and Wolff Farm scattered 
throughout rural areas of town. The town is home to horses kept 
for riding and cattle and sheep farms. Several of these farms are 
located in the vicinity of the intersection of Gravelly Brook Road, 
Goose Rocks Road, and Arundel Road. 

KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 CHAPTER 7 NATURAL RESOURCES 146 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A |1 

Goals, Policies & Strategies 
KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 

Volume 2 Appendix A 
May June 20232 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A |2 

Introduction
The table of Goals, Policies, and Strategies that follows summarizes the action steps that are intended to guide implementation of the 
plan. This table will help the next generation of community leaders and officials understand the desire of the townspeople as they balance 
the events of the future, budgets, and tax rates. It is a road map for all to use and shall be referenced and utilized frequently as the routine 
tasks of local government are undertaken.  

Although the table presented here has segmented parts corresponding to each Comprehensive Plan chapter, the strategies are as 
interconnected as the subjects of the chapters. Housing, natural resources, or the local economy may seem distinct and sometimes even 
counter to each other, however, these elements are inexorably linked and their reciprocal influence over each other blends true distinction. 
Similarly, the challenges brought by a changing climate cannot be separated out into a section of its own. Instead, adaptation and 
consideration of climate change has been addressed in each section because its effects will challenge the community in innumerable ways.  

This plan aims to work collaboratively with residents, business owners, and regional partners on the challenges of sea-level rise, 
transportation, housing, and others that we share in southern Maine. Through adaptation we will strive to preserve Kennebunkport’s 
historic integrity, protect natural resources, and strengthen the town’s unique small-town character while improving economic vitality. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 3 

Responsible Parties List 

Entity Acronym 
Assessing Department   AD 
Beach Advisory Committee   BAC 
Board of Selectmen   BoS 
Budget Board   BB 
Cemetery Committee    KCC 
Cape Porpoise Archaeological Alliance   CPAA 
Chamber of Commerce   CoC 
Code Enforcement Officer   CEO 
Conservation Commission    CC 
Emergency Management   EM 
Finance Department    FD 
Growth Planning Committee    GPC 
Harbormasters   HM 
Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust   KHHT 
Kennebunk River Committee    KRC 
Kennebunkport Business Association   KBA 
Kennebunkport Emergency Medical Services   KEMS  
Kennebunkport Conservation Trust    KCT 
Kennebunkport Consolidated School   KCS 

Entity Acronym 
Kennebunkport Historical Society KHS 
Library Trustees and Staff  L 
Parks and Recreation Department PRD 
Planning Board PB 
Planning Department  PD 
Police Department  PoD 
Public Health Department  PH 
Public Safety Committee PSC 
Public Works Department  PW 
Recreation Committee RC 
RSU 21  RSU 
Shade Tree Committee  STC 
Shellfish Conservation Committee SCC 
Solid Waste Committee SWC 
Town Clerk  TC 
Town Manager  TM 
US Coast Guard CG 
US Fish & Wildlife Service  FWS 

Timeframes: Short term = 0-3 years; Medium term = 3-5 years; Long term = 5+ years 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 4 

Chapter 3: Historic Resources Responsible 
Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL PROMOTE AND PRESERVE LOCAL HISTORY AND HERITAGE. 
2 Policy Promote awareness of the Town’s history. 

3 Strategy Prioritize Planning Board applicants who have knowledge of architectural 
history, historic preservation, and archaeology. 

BoS Ongoing 

4  Strategy 
Continue to teach local history at the Kennebunkport Consolidated School. 
Coordinate efforts between local historians, residents, parents, friends, and 
teachers at the Consolidated School. 

RSU 21 & KCS Ongoing 

5  Strategy 
Undertake a detailed, town wide survey of Kennebunkport’s historic structures. 
Identify historic sites and areas. Identify historic buildings that are threatened by 
sea level rise and extreme weather events. 

KHS 
Medium 

Term 

6  Strategy 
Promote awareness of historic structures and districts that are listed in the 
National Register of Historic Places and the Historic American Building Survey. KHS Ongoing 

7  Strategy 
Update the historic building plaque program to include structures and sites  
dating to the mid-20th century. 

KHS Short Term 

8  Strategy Develop audio recordings of self-guided walking tours of Kennebunkport’s 
historically and architecturally significant sites. Erect interpretive signs. 

KHS Medium 
Term 

9 GOAL RECOVER DATA FROM PREHISTORIC AND HISTORIC ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
SITES. 

10 Policy 
Protect and preserve prehistoric and historic sites until such time as data 
can be recovered by professional archaeologists. 

11 Strategy Develop an ordinance to protect archaeological sites. PD & CPAA Medium 
Term 

12 Strategy 
Educate property owners and developers on the importance of archaeological 
remains and seek their cooperation to ensure that prehistoric and historic sites 
are left in an undisturbed state. 

PD & CPAA Ongoing 

13 Strategy 
Support the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust in its efforts to preserve the 
sites of historic European fishing settlements and Native American use of the 
Cape Porpoise area. 

PB & KCT Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 5 

14 Policy 
Efforts to recover data from archaeological sites in coastal areas should be 
accelerated due to the increasing intensity of extreme weather events. 

15 Strategy Support the rapid response efforts of the Cape Porpoise Archaeological 
Alliance and accelerate efforts to recover data from offshore shipwrecks. 

PB & CPAA Ongoing 

16 GOAL PROTECT AND PRESERVE HISTORIC STRUCTURES AND DISTRICTS. 

17 Policy Preserve historic and architecturally significant structures and areas. 

18 Strategy Educate property owners on tax incentives for the restoration and preservation 
of income producing property. 

PD Ongoing 

19 Strategy Advise property owners on improving a building’s energy efficiency while 
preserving its historic character. 

CEO Short Term 

20 Policy 
Protect historic structures that are threatened by sea level rise and extreme 
weather events. 

21 Strategy 
Work with the Silver Jackets and other experts to devise a plan to protect Dock 
Square buildings. PD Short Term 

22 Goal PRESERVE CEMETERIES AND GRAVEYARDS. 
23 Policy Restore, maintain, and protect cemeteries and burial plots. 

24 Strategy 

Research and document all cemeteries and burial plots. Seek permission from 
private property owners to allow access for restoration, monitoring, and 
necessary maintenance. Enlist volunteers to work with the Cemetery 
Committee to restore all sites. 

KCC Medium 
Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 6 

Chapter 6: Housing Responsible 
Party 

Timeline 

1 GOAL MEET THE DEMAND FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING BY PROVIDING FOR A 
MIX OF HOUSING TYPES IN A BROAD RANGE OF PRICES. 

2 Policy 

Incentivize the construction of year-round affordable housing units and 
create standards of eligibility for such units with preference for school and 
government employees, Kennebunkport residents, and persons employed 
in the Town. 

3 Strategy Amend the LUO to include a definition of affordable housing. PD Short Term 

4 Strategy 
Consider the acquisition or use of Town-owned land for the construction of 
affordable year-round housing units. BoS Ongoing 

5 Strategy 
Consider amending the LUO to reduce minimum lot size requirements and 
increase allowable density within Growth Areas. PB & PD Short Term 

6 Strategy Encourage clustering of all types of housing units, including duplex and multi-
plex units. 

PB & PD Short Term 

7 Strategy 
In subdivisions of 10+ dwelling units, the developer should set aside 10% as 
affordable units. In subdivisions of 5 to 9 dwelling units, at least one should be 
set aside. Alternately, the developer may consider an in-lieu fee. 

PB, HHT & PD Short Term 

8 Strategy Encourage the construction of accessory dwelling units for year-round use. PB & PD Ongoing 

9 Strategy 
Amend the LUO to allow accessory dwelling units (ADU) and home 
occupations to co-exist and utilize performance standards to regulate the 
appearance and potential impact of these uses within neighborhoods. 

PB & PD Short Term 

10 Strategy 
Allow the development of multi-plex (multi-family) housing, including rental 
units, in designated Growth Areas. PB & PD Short Term 

11 Strategy Encourage the development of assisted living and independent living facilities. PB & PD Ongoing 

12 Strategy 
To ensure a timely response by volunteer first responders, the Town should 
take steps to ensure that in-town housing options are affordable for first 
responders. 

PSC, PB & 
BoS 

Ongoing 

13 Strategy Support the Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust. BoS Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 7 

Chapter 7: Natural Resources, Forest Resources, and 
Agricultural Resources 

Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL 
PROTECT CRITICAL NATURAL RESOURCES, INCLUDING WETLANDS, 
TERRESTRIAL AND AQUATIC HABITAT, SAND DUNES, BEACHES, SCENIC 
VISTAS, AND UNIQUE NATURAL AREAS. 

2 Policy 
Conserve and protect Kennebunkport’s critical natural resources through 
conservation and education. 

14 Strategy 
Consider the establishment of a development impact fee to fund affordable 
housing. PD Short Term 

15 Strategy 
Maintain locations in growth areas where mobile home parks are allowed 
pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §4358(3)(M) and where manufactured housing is 
allowed pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §4358(2). 

PD & GPC Ongoing 

165 GOAL MINIMIZE THE ADVERSE IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE. 
176 Policy Reduce the vulnerability of housing to climate change. 
187 Strategy Educate homeowners about flood vulnerability. CEO & PD Short Term 

198 Strategy 
Seek grants from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and other state 
and federal agencies to assist property owners adapt to climate change. PD Ongoing 

2019 Strategy Review current zoning codes, regulations, and policies to incorporate natural
design elements and building practices such as Low Impact Design standards. 

PD & PB Short Term 

210 Strategy Consider climate impacts when identifying future growth areas. PD, PB & GPC Long Term 

221 Strategy 
Recommend where appropriate the reduction of width standards for roads that 
serve multiple buildings as a strategy to reduce impervious surfaces. PD & PB 

Medium 
Term 

232 Strategy 
Review and make recommendations for off-street parking requirements for 
residential use. PD & PB Medium 

243 Strategy Encourage builders and residents to install and maintain pervious material in 
appropriate locations. 

PD & PB Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 8 

3 Strategy 
Support and collaborate with the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust to protect 
critical and important natural resources through purchase of land or easements 
from willing sellers. 

KCT & CC Ongoing 

4 Strategy 

Conduct a natural resources inventory to prioritize conservation and allocation 
of resources toward conservation, maintenance, and monitoring activities in 
areas with greatest co-occurrence of water features, important natural 
communities, listed animal and plant species, and undeveloped land. 

CC & PD Medium 
Term 

5 Strategy 

Collaborate with conservation partners to identify and make public a regional 
database of educational resources and information about critical habitat 
(including salt marshes), vulnerable species, and the impacts of development 
and human activity on natural resources. 

CC, FWS & PD Short Term 

6 Policy 
Minimize the impacts of development and human activity on natural 
resources. 

7 Strategy Require that subdivisions and commercial developments maintain open space
to the greatest extent practicable. 

PB & PD Short Term 

8 Strategy Encourage the use of native plants on public and private property. PB & PD Short Term 

9 Strategy Encourage developers to install street trees to enhance wildlife habitat and
provide shade. PB & PD Short Term 

10 Strategy 

Conduct monitoring to evaluate the impact of pesticides and herbicides on 
natural resources and water resources and identify strategies to minimize 
impacts such as through alternative weed and pest controls and regulations as 
needed.   

PD, CC & BAC Short Term 

11 GOAL PROTECT RARE AND ENDANGERED SPECIES. 
12 Policy Educate the public about rare and endangered species. 

13 Strategy 
Collaborate with conservation partners to develop an education and outreach 
program to inform the public about the presence of endangered, rare, and 
significant species and how to avoid impacting these species. 

CC, FWS & PD Medium 
Term 

14 Strategy 

Work with the Maine DOT and Kennebunkport’s Public Works Department to 
accommodate known migratory crossings of endangered reptiles and 
amphibians as part of road construction and repair projects.  Continue to place 
caution signs at appropriate sites. 

PW & PD Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 9 

15 Strategy Continue to place signage on beaches during plover nesting season. PW Ongoing 

16 GOAL 
PROTECT FOREST RESOURCES AND FARMLAND FROM THE NEGATIVE 
IMPACTS OF DEVELOPMENT. 

17 Policy Support agricultural and forestry activities. 

18 Strategy Support forestry and agricultural uses and activities such as agritourism,
backyard chickens, farms, farm stands, and firewood sales. 

PD Short Term 

19 Strategy 
Review Town ordinances and regulations for consistency with Maine’s Right to 
Farm Law (Title 7 MSRA, Chapter 6) to determine if local ordinances and 
regulations require strengthening.   

PD & PB Short Term 

20 Strategy Review Town ordinances and regulations for consistency with Article 1 Section
25 Establishing A Right to Food of the Constitution of the State of Maine 

PD & PB Short Term 

21 Strategy Amend the LUO to permit farmers’ markets. PB Short Term 

22 Strategy 

Review and amend, as necessary, the LUO and subdivision regulations to 
develop performance standards to protect forest and farmland resources. Land 
developers should identify critical natural resources and utilize Beginning with 
Habitat maps and other data resources. 

PD & PB Short Term 

23 GOAL PROTECT NATURAL RESOURCES WHILE MANAGING FOR LOW IMPACT 
PUBLIC USE. 

24 Policy Maintain and enhance open space recreational assets. 

25 Strategy 
Coordinate with the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust to interconnect public 
and private conservation lands and trail systems including links to routes and 
facilities in neighboring communities. 

CC & KCT Medium 
Term 

26 Strategy Review use of Town-owned conservation lands to ensure activities do not
damage or deplete natural resources. 

CC & PD Medium 
Term 

27 Strategy Periodically review the use of town properties and seek input from residents on 
uses of properties CC & BoS Medium 

Term 
28 Policy Provide access to conservation land. 

29 Strategy 

Coordinate with the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust to inventory, and 
improve, as needed, parking, access, and trails at conservation land that is open 
to the public. When appropriate, support the KCT as it works toward improving 
accessibility to a range of users, physical abilities, and activities. 

CC & KCT Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 10 

30 Strategy 
Form a committee to investigate opportunities to balance protection and 
enjoyment of natural resources with tourism and recreation opportunities. CC, KCT & CoC Short Term 

31 Policy Maintain and enhance scenic resources. 

32 Strategy Inventory scenic resources and create an online map of scenic vistas. PB & PD Medium 
Term 

33 Strategy Add protection of scenic views and scenic resources to Site Plan Review
Performance Standards. PB & PD Medium 

Term 
34 Goal ADAPT TO CLIMATE CHANGE. 
35 Policy Enhance the resiliency of habitats and species. 

36 Strategy 
Identify opportunities to accommodate marsh migration inland to protect this 
critically important resource from sea level rise. PB, CC & PD Short Term 

37 Strategy 
Encourage conservation of low-lying undeveloped uplands where coastal 
marshes, beaches, and other intertidal natural communities can migrate inland 
with sea level rise. 

PB, CC, KCT & 
PD Short Term 

38 Strategy 

Identify locations to enhance wildlife corridors to help create places for species 
to migrate and shift north as temperature increases and protect these areas. 
The Nature Conservancy’s Resilient Lands mapping tool is a good resource for 
identifying resilient and connected networks. 

PB, CC & PD Medium 
Term 

39 Strategy 
Create and implement an invasive species management policy, including public 
outreach and education, and prepare to manage invasive species on town 
property. 

PW, CC & PD Short Term 

40 Strategy 
Educate property owners about impacts of climate change, such as extreme 
heat, drought, and changes in precipitation on habitats and species. Provide 
information to new homeowners. 

CC & PD Short Term 

41 Policy Increase community resilience. 

42 Strategy 
Provide education about the role of shade trees in reducing heat and mitigating 
climate change and impacts. STC Short Term 

43 Strategy 
Engage in efforts to protect and restore protective natural features, such as 
floodplains, wetlands, marshes, dunes, and dune grass. CC Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 11 

Chapter 8: Water Resources Responsible 
Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL PROTECT THE QUALITY AND QUANTITY OF WATER RESOURCES. 
2 Policy Protect drinking water sources. 

3 Strategy Collaborate with the City of Biddeford to ensure cross boundary protection of 
groundwater resources. Create an aquifer protection overlay district. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

4 Strategy 
Coordinate with the Kennebunk, Kennebunkport & Wells Water District 
(KKWWD) and area towns to protect regional drinking water resources. PD Ongoing 

5 Strategy 
Periodically review regulations to ensure that freshwater wetlands that provide 
important groundwater recharge are sufficiently protected. PD 

Medium 
Term 

6 Policy Protect water resources from the impacts of development and reduce the 
potential of water quality degradation. 

7 Strategy Conduct a comprehensive review of the LUO and Subdivision Regulations to
identify opportunities to strengthen provisions for water resource protection. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

8 Strategy 
Reduce the threshold percentage of impervious surface area that triggers the 
need for a stormwater management system under site plan review and increase 
the design standard for stormwater infrastructure to the 100-year storm event. 

PB & PD 
Medium 

Term 

9 Strategy Amend stormwater regulations to require that stormwater be managed onsite
as opposed to allowing offsite mitigation. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

10 Strategy 
Amend the LUO and Subdivision Regulations to include green infrastructure 
and low impact development standards. Encourage complete streets and green 
streets. 

PB & PD Short Term 

11 Strategy Continue to follow best practices that achieves a balance of low salt application
with roadway safety. 

PW Ongoing 

12 Policy Improve aquatic habitat. 

13 Strategy 
When possible, follow Stream Smart road crossing policies to reduce the impact 
of road crossings on fish and other aquatic species and habitat. PW& PD Ongoing 

14 Policy Identify, monitor, and reduce sources of pollution. 

15 Strategy Conduct regular water quality monitoring of Little River, Beaver Brook, Smith 
Brook, Batson River, and the Kennebunk River. 

PH & PD Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 12 

16 Strategy Continue to monitor the impact of the sewer outfall in the Kennebunk River. PW Ongoing 

17 GOAL 
INCREASE COMMUNITY AWARENESS ABOUT WATER RESOURCE 
PROTECTION. 

18 Policy Educate the public about water resource protection. 

19 Strategy 

Include resources and links to information on water quality best management 
practices and pollutants (including invasive species, fertilizer, pesticide, 
herbicide use, septic failure, sedimentation, and hazardous substances) in town-
wide mailings and post this information on the Town’s website. 

CC Short Term 

20 Strategy 
Distribute educational material to property owners about the impacts of 
development, impervious surfaces, and disturbance of banks and riparian 
habitat on water bodies. 

CC Short Term 

21 Strategy 
Develop material on natural resource and water quality protection measures for 
owners of property including rental properties to make available to short term 
and seasonal renters. 

CC Short Term 

22 Strategy Conduct a public outreach campaign to increase awareness of the impact of 
septic systems on surface and groundwater. 

CEO Short Term 

23 Policy Manage water resources at a regional and watershed scale. 

24 Strategy 
Collaborate with Kennebunk, Biddeford, Arundel, the York County Soil and 
Water Conservation District, and the Kennebunk River Committee, and land 
trusts in neighboring communities to protect water resources. 

BoS, CC & KCT Ongoing 

25 Policy Maintain healthy biological and ecological diversity. 

26 Strategy Add a definition of vernal pool to the LUO that is consistent with ME DEP
Chapter 335 rules. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

27 Strategy Coordinate with the City of Biddeford to adopt performance standards to 
protect vernal pools in the Biddeford/Kennebunkport Vernal Pool Complex. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

28 GOAL ADAPT TO THE IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE. 

29 Policy 
Minimize the impacts of climate change to water resources and water 
infrastructure. 

30 Strategy 
Adopt water conservation policies for properties on public water and 
educational measures to conserve water during droughts and encourage 
conservation and reuse of water resources. 

BoS Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 13 

31 Strategy 
Identify opportunities to lead, participate, and build from regional climate 
adaption efforts. BoS, PB & PD Ongoing 

32 Strategy Encourage homeowners to test private well water quality and to inform the 
Town of high salinity levels that may be due to saltwater intrusion. 

CEO Ongoing 

33 Strategy 

Investigate the vulnerability of public and private wells to sea level rise induced 
groundwater rise and to drought. Initiate planning for the potential future 
needs to expand the Town’s drinking water and wastewater infrastructure if 
private wells and/or septic systems become unusable due to drought, salinity, or 
other contamination. 

BoS & PD Medium 
Term 

34 Strategy 
Identify and monitor buried hazards and registered storage tanks that may be 
impacted by rising groundwater and develop a plan to relocate them as 
necessary. 

PD Medium 
Term 

35 Strategy 
Provide education about climate change impacts such as increased and more 
frequent flooding of surface water, wetlands, and floodplains, and other low-
lying areas. 

PD Short Term 

Chapter 9: Marine Resources 
Responsible 

Party 
Timeframe 

1 GOAL 
ENSURE ACCESS TO COASTAL WATERS NECESSARY FOR COMMERCIAL 
FISHING, COMMERCIAL MOORING, DOCKINGS, AND RELATED FACILITIES. 

2 Policy 
Cooperate with the Towns of Kennebunk and Arundel in the management of 
the tidal portions of the Kennebunk River. 

3 Strategy Continue active participation in the Kennebunk River Committee as provided by 
the Inter-local Agreement. 

KRC Ongoing 

4 Policy Ensure safe, well-marked, and unimpeded use to both of the Town’s major 
harbors. 

5 Strategy 
Work with the harbormaster(s) and the Coast Guard to maintain clear markings 
of the channels. HM & CG Ongoing 

6 Policy Provide sufficient regulation to require safe and courteous operation of 
watercraft and maintenance of moorings. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 14 

7 Strategy 
Provide regulations to encourage the safe operation of watercraft in affected 
areas. BoS & HM Ongoing 

8 Policy Reserve a sufficient number of moorings to meet the needs of the 
commercial fishing industry. 

9 Strategy Maintain separate mooring lists for commercial and pleasure craft to provide
access for both uses in the harbors. 

BoS & HM Ongoing 

10 Strategy Continue to assign priority status to commercial fishermen for mooring spaces. BoS & HM Ongoing 
11 Policy Protect and support the marine resources industry. 
12 Strategy The LUO should continue to allow marine resource uses in appropriate areas. PD & PB Ongoing 

13 Strategy Identify and assess appropriate sites for aquaculture. 
HM, BoS, KCT 

& SCC 
Medium 

Term 

14 Strategy Reduce the flow of nitrates into nearshore waters and eel grass habitat by
expanding the Town’s sewer service area. 

PW, CC & PD Long Term 

15 Strategy 
As the water temperature rises in the Gulf of Maine, assist local fishermen in 
transitioning to the harvesting of species that thrive in warmer waters. PD Long Term 

16 Strategy 
Support the provisions of the Land Use Ordinance that support the commercial 
fishing industry. PB & PD Ongoing 

17 Policy Keep Government Wharf & Cape Porpoise Pier well maintained, and 
Preserve the Working Waterfront 

18 Strategy Maintain the Cape Porpoise Pier and Government Wharf and ensure that there is
adequate access and amenities for commercial fishermen. BoS & HM Ongoing 

19 Strategy 
Educate individuals engaged in working waterfront activities about the working 
waterfront current use program. A Ongoing 

20 Goal 
ENSURE ACCESS TO PUBLIC BEACHES BY RESIDENTS AND SUMMER 
VISITORS, WHILE PROTECTING THE PRIVACY OF PROPERTY OWNERS IN 
THE VICINITY. 

21 Policy Allow residents and visitors to enjoy the use of the Town’s beaches. 
22 Strategy Maintain signage marking public access to beaches. PW & BAC Ongoing 
23 Strategy Provide information regarding use of the beaches with all parking stickers. BAC & TC Ongoing 
24 Strategy Continue the use of public safety patrols on the beaches. PoD Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 15 

25 GOAL 
PROTECT THE WATER QUALITY OF TIDALRIVERS, STREAMS, MARSHES, 
AND COASTAL BEACHES 

26 Policy Protect the health of recreational users of tidal areas and beaches. 

27 Strategy 

Continue the partnership with Maine’s Healthy Beaches Program and 
implement the recommendations in its “Summary Report of Enhanced 
Monitoring and Pollution Source Tracking Efforts in the Goose Rocks Beach 
Watershed, Kennebunkport,” published in February 2021. 

BAC & PD Short Term 

28 Policy Reduce contamination levels to allow shellfish harvesting and to meet all 
applicable water quality standards. 

29 Strategy Work with the Maine Department of Environmental Protection to monitor and
eliminate fecal coliform levels found in tidal waters. 

BAC & PD Ongoing 

30 Strategy 
Inspect subsurface wastewater disposal systems and enforce the applicable 
regulations. Enforce overboard discharge regulations. CEO Ongoing 

31 Strategy 
Pump outs should be provided in Cape Porpoise Harbor and the Kennebunk 
River and educate the public about the importance of the use of the pump outs. BoS & HM Short Term 

32 Policy Educate the public about the value of and need to protect salt marshes. 

33 Strategy 
Create educational materials and assess need for regulation to promote regular 
maintenance on private septic systems, especially within areas adjacent to salt 
marshes. 

CC & FWS Short Term 

Chapter 10: Energy Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL REDUCE THE VOLUME OF GREENHOUSE GASSES GENERATED IN 
KENNEBUNKPORT 

2 Policy 
Develop and implement community-wide strategies to reduce greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions. 

3 Strategy Review LOU to ensure minimum regulatory hurdles which would allow all 
properties to install EV chargers. 

PD Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 16 

4 Strategy Investigate the benefits of adopting the state energy stretch code. 
PD & CEO Medium 

Term 

5 Strategy 
Remove barriers and encourage commercial development of a certain scale to 
include EV charging stations and be designed to exceed minimum energy 
code standards. 

PB & PD Short Term 

6 Strategy Continue to look for opportunities to expand bike and pedestrian paths to
lessen dependence on conventional vehicles.  PD & PW Ongoing 

7 Policy Strive to match or exceed the State of Maine’s goals of a 45% reduction in 
GHG emissions by 2030, and 80% by 2050. 

Strategy  BoS 

8 Strategy 
Utilize Southern Maine Planning & Development Commission’s calculations 
on Kennebunkport’s GHG emissions in the transportation sector as a baseline 
to measure progress in the future. 

PD & Bos Ongoing 

9 Strategy 
Measure & monitor GHG emissions from municipal operations, and 
community wide by establishing a GHG emissions inventory and a plan for 
reducing emissions. 

PD & Bos Ongoing 

10 Strategy Develop a town wide climate action plan. BoS & PD Short Term 

11 Strategy Educate community members about steps they can take to reduce emissions
and become more resilient PD Ongoing 

12 Policy Prepare the community for a changing climate. 
13 Strategy Educate the community about current clean energy incentives and options. PD Ongoing 

14 Strategy 
Educate community members about how to prepare their property for the 
effects of a changing climate. PD Short Term 

15 Policy Reduce municipal fossil fuel consumption and implement municipal energy 
efficiency measures. 

16 Strategy Continue to budget and plan for long-term energy efficiency equipment
upgrades. TM, BB, BoS Medium 

Term 

17 Strategy 
Review the potential to install and operate renewable energy systems at 
municipal facilities. BoS 

Medium 
Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 17 

18 Strategy 
Continue to support the procurement of renewable energy for public facilities 
using bundled or unbundled Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs). BoS Ongoing 

19 Strategy Continue to collaborate with other municipalities to install and operate 
renewable energy systems for municipal and community use. 

BoS & PD Ongoing 

20 Strategy Track and benchmark building energy consumption and seek ways to improve
energy efficiency in all facilities. 

TM, Fin Dept. Medium 
Term 

21 GOAL 
IMPROVE THE RELIABILITY OF KENNEBUNKPORT’S ELECTRICAL 
POWER SUPPLY 

22 Policy Encourage local generation of renewable energy and decentralization of 
the electrical grid. 

23 Strategy Amend the LOU to allow solar arrays (up to 10 acres) in appropriate locations 
with appropriate performance standards. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

24 Strategy 
Review LUO for hinderances to renewable energy systems and recommend 
amendments. CEO & PD Short Term 

Chapter 11: Transportation Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL ENSURE THE TOWN’S TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PROVIDES 
EFFICIENT, SAFE, AND CONNECTED ACCESS FOR THE COMMUNITY 

2 Policy 
Maintain and improve transportation infrastructure and provide adequate 
facilities and equipment to do so. 

3 Strategy Continue to update, prioritize, and fund the Town’s plan for transportation
improvements, maintenance, and repairs. 

TM Ongoing 

4 Strategy Maintain the Town’s Street Acceptance Policy that requires sufficient public
benefit for a street to be considered for acceptance as a public way.  BoS Ongoing 

5 Strategy 
Maintain and invest in Town roads, including all necessary ditches, streams, 
culverts, and drainage structures, as well as capacity to accommodate 
pedestrian and bicycle use. 

PW Ongoing 

6 Policy Support a safe, efficient, and optimal use of the regional transportation 
system. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 18 

7 Strategy 
Collaborate with regional partners to identify solutions to meet needs of 
community. BoS Ongoing 

8 Strategy 
Work with the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) to improve 
pedestrian and bicycle connections between Cape Porpoise Square and Dock 
Square. 

PD Ongoing 

9 Policy Plan and prepare to accommodate electric vehicles (EV). 

10 Strategy 
Identify locations for EV charging stations, according to Maine Clean 
Community recommendations, that would benefit the community. PD  Short Term 

11 Strategy Ensure there are no unnecessary regulatory hurdles to installing EV charging
stations on public or private property and support their procurement. 

PB & PD Short Term 

12 Policy Reduce traffic congestion. 

13 Strategy Consider a traffic study to identify opportunities to reduce congestion in Dock
Square. BoS & PD Medium 

Term 

14 Strategy 
Evaluate the need for new traffic patterns when considering higher density 
development in the growth areas. PD Long Term 

15 Strategy Evaluate the need for additional parking to service Dock Square. BoS Medium 
Term 

16 Strategy Advertise alternative transportation means for sightseeing and recreation to
visitors of Kennebunkport. 

CoC Short Term 

17 GOAL INCREASE MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS 

18 Policy 
Meet the diverse transportation and public health needs of all residents and 
visitors by providing a safe, efficient, and adequate transportation network 
for all types of users. 

19 Strategy Review complete street practices for relevant tools and ideas for
Kennebunkport. 

PD, PW Medium 
Term 

20 Strategy Develop a long-term vision for a network of bicycle routes to serve the 
community and link to routes and facilities in neighboring communities. 

PD, KCT, 
PW, PRD  

Medium 
Term 

21 Strategy 
Consider a standard minimum sidewalk width for public streets. Identify areas 
of high pedestrian traffic in need of sidewalks. PW & PD 

Medium 
Term 

22 Policy Prioritize safety for pedestrians and bicyclists. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 19 

23 Strategy 
Identify and resolve any safety issues or concerns within the vicinity of the 
consolidated school. 

RSU, Police, 
PW Short Term 

24 Strategy Identify locations where a reduction in speed will minimize the potential
pedestrian and bicycle fatalities and serious injuries. 

PD, Police, 
PW 

Short Term 

25 Strategy Request Maine DOT install bike routes near the school and along state roads. BoS Short Term 

26 Strategy Seek opportunities to integrate traffic calming methods into roadway 
improvements. PD, PW Ongoing 

27 Policy Provide amenities for bicyclists. 
28 Strategy Encourage commercial property owners to install bike racks. PB & PD Ongoing 

29 Strategy 
Inventory existing public bike racks and identify locations where additional 
public racks are needed. PD, PRD Short Term 

30 GOAL INTEGRATE TRANSPORTATION AND LAND USE PLANNING 
31 Policy Develop a connected network of streets and destinations. 

32 Strategy Work with the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust to enhance trail 
connectivity. 

PRD, KCT & 
PD Ongoing 

33 Strategy 
Add criteria in subdivision regs that promote shared driveways and require 
developers to show future connectivity to adjacent parcels including roads and 
trails. 

PB & PD Short Term 

34 Policy Enhance access to waterfront, recreation, and other amenities. 
35 Strategy Continue to issue beach parking stickers to residents and visitors. BoS, Clerk Ongoing 

36 Policy Maintain compatibility between transportation infrastructure and 
surroundings. 

37 Strategy 
Coordinate with MDOT to ensure that transportation improvement projects on 
Route 9 and North Street are consistent with the character of the 
neighborhood. 

PW Ongoing 

38 Strategy Investigate the merits of separate roadway design standards for designated
rural and growth areas for subdivisions. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

39 Strategy Consider identifying scenic byways for future preservation. PB & PD Medium 
Term 

40 GOAL REDUCE IMPACTS TO INFRASTRUCTURE FROM TO CLIMATE CHANGE 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 20 

41 Policy 
Integrate climate risk assessment and adaptation planning into prospective 
transportation projects. 

42 Strategy Conduct a comprehensive transportation vulnerability assessment to identify
vulnerable assets and loss of connectivity due to sea level rise. 

PD Short Term 

43 Strategy Investigate impacts of groundwater rise and extreme heat on transportation 
infrastructure. 

PD Short Term 

44 Strategy 
Continue to upgrade culverts to withstand extreme weather events and greater 
precipitation. PW Ongoing 

45 Strategy Continue to upgrade and repair publicly owned seawalls. BoS, PW Ongoing 

46 Strategy Plan for the possibility that some town roads or segments of town roads may 
require elevation to avoid inundation due to sea level rise. 

PD, BoS, 
PW, TM 

Short Term 

Chapter 12: Economy Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL 
ACHIEVE A SUSTAINABLE BALANCE BETWEEN TOURISM AND 
MAINTAINING THE TOWN’S CHARACTER AND QUALITY OF LIFE FOR ALL 
ITS RESIDENTS 

2 Policy 
Recognize the importance of seasonal visitors while maintaining 
Kennebunkport’s scenic beauty and architectural heritage for the 
enjoyment of all. 

3 Strategy Incorporate placemaking signage to designate specific points of interest. PW & CoC 
Medium 

Term 

4 Strategy 
Support the needs of the business community to attract tourists while at the 
same time assuring a high quality of life for residents. 

PD & CoC Ongoing 

5 Policy Recognize the important contributions by non-resident taxpayers. 

6 Strategy Encourage involvement by non-resident taxpayers in community forums and 
other venues.  TM Ongoing 

7 GOAL PROMOTE THE DEVELOPMENT AND VIABILITY OF LOCAL BUSINESSES. 
8 Policy Develop and maintain local jobs for residents of all ages and backgrounds. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 21 

9 Strategy Update and simplify ordinance provisions governing home occupations. CEO & PD Short Term 

10 Strategy Investigate appropriate locations for food trucks and provide 
recommendations for ordinance amendments. 

PD Medium 
Term 

11 Strategy Explore innovative approaches to housing the tourist industry’s seasonal 
workforce. 

PD, CoC, 
KBA 

Medium 
Term 

12 Strategy 
Create and promote a community brand featuring natural resources and 
cultural characteristics of the community. PD & CoC 

Medium 
Term 

13 GOAL MITIGATE POTENTIAL IMPACTS OF COMMERCIAL USES ON 
SURROUNDING NEIGHBORHOODS 

14 Policy Manage commercial development and associated tourism to ensure the 
safety and enjoyment of residents and visitors. 

15 Strategy 
Review past PB conditions of approval to identify commonly added standards 
that address specific adverse effects on residential neighborhoods to 
determine if the LUO adequately protects residential use and enjoyment. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

16 Strategy Encourage the PB to develop an ongoing reporting requirement for conditions 
of approval when appropriate 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

17 Strategy Develop standards for businesses and small-scale professional offices so that 
they reflect the scale and character of the community. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

18 Strategy 
Review current policies for parking and traffic flow control provisions to ensure 
reduced congestion and provide a healthful, safe, and peaceful environment 
for residents and visitors. 

PB & PD Short Term 

19 Strategy 
Collaborate with the Town of Kennebunk and the business communities in 
Dock Square and Kennebunk Lower Village to manage tourism to ensure the 
safety and enjoyment of residents and visitors. 

BoS, CoC & 
KBA Ongoing 

20 Strategy 
Investigate and recommend standards for commercial enterprises that provide 
goods and services catered to a year-round community PB & PD 

Medium 
Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 22 

Chapter 13: Public Facilities & Services Responsible 
Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL MAINTAIN A LOCALLY BASED PUBLIC-SCHOOL FACILITY. 

2 Policy Continue to have a local public-school facility in Kennebunkport.  

3 Strategy 
Ensure that Kennebunkport’s municipal cost share for RSU 21 continues to 
support and maintain staff and facilities at consolidated school. BoS Ongoing 

4 GOAL ENSURE ADEQUATE MUNICIPAL OFFICE SPACE AND TECHNOLOGY 
FOR TOWN GOVERNMENT AND RELATED SERVICES.  

5 Policy Provide adequate facilities for local government. 

6 Strategy Continue to offer online municipal services to better serve the public, while
maintaining an efficient workforce.  

BoS Ongoing 

7 Strategy 
Consider facility and staff needs assessment to be kept up to date with current 
and future internal and external needs. 

TM, BoS, 
Dept. Heads 

Medium 
Term 

8 GOAL 
PROVIDE PUBLIC SEWER SERVICE IN AREAS DESIGNATED AS GROWTH 
AREAS AND WHERE SEWER EXPANSION WILL BENEFIT 
ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS. 

9 Policy Monitor and prepare for the need for sewage facilities in growth areas and 
where sewer expansion will benefit environmentally sensitive areas. 

10 Strategy Assessment of existing wastewater infrastructure for both current and future
design flows PW Medium 

Term 

11 Strategy Continually re-evaluate the rate of impact fees and user fees. BoS & PW Ongoing 

12 Strategy Ensure that the maintenance of aging sewer infrastructure is a priority. BoS & PW Ongoing 

13 Strategy Evaluate adding existing developed areas in environmentally sensitive 
locations onto public sewer PW Medium 

Term 

14 Strategy 
Adhere to the Maine Climate Council’s recommendation to locate new critical 
infrastructures, such as pump stations and other wastewater infrastructure, 
away from areas that are at-risk from sea level rise and flooding. 

BoS & PW Ongoing 

15 GOAL 
PROVIDE ADEQUATE FACILITIES AND SERVICES TO MEET PUBLIC 
SAFETY NEEDS.  



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 23 

16 Policy 
Maintain an adequate police, fire, and ambulance service to protect the 
community and properties of Kennebunkport. 

17 Strategy Support the continued needs of the Town’s evolving fire service.  FC & BoS Ongoing 

18 Strategy 
Ensure that adequate capital is appropriated for buildings, trucks, and 
equipment. TM Ongoing 

19 Strategy Continue to support mutual aid agreements for fire and ambulance service. PSC, PC & 
BoS 

Ongoing 

20 GOAL MAINTAIN KENNEBUNKPORT AS A TREE CITY USA COMMUNITY.  

21 Policy Maintain an active Shade Tree Program. 

22 Strategy 
When specified, require developers to plant shade trees in a manner 
consistent with a town-wide plan (specifications to be developed by the 
Shade Tree Committee) prioritizing the public roadways. 

Shade Tree 
Committee, 

PB & PD 

Medium 
Term 

23 Strategy 
Review and revise, if necessary, the town’s current shade tree program to 
ensure adequate installation, maintenance, and replacement policies. 

PB, STC & 
PD Short Term 

24 Strategy Maintain large trees that provide shade PW & STC Ongoing 

25 Strategy Encourage the PB to maintain existing large trees that provide shade.  PB Ongoing 

26 GOAL REDUCE SOLID WASTE.  

27 Policy Encourage the reduction of solid waste and support and sustain a viable 
and creative recycling program. 

28 Strategy 
Maintain a consistent and continuing educational program to keep citizens 
informed of recycling, hazardous waste disposal, composting, and other 
programs available for them to use.   

PW, BoS  Ongoing 

29 Strategy Develop a program to assist commercial properties to actively participate in
recycling programs.   PW, BoS Short Term 

30 Strategy 
Reduce solid waste and increase composting and recycling by investigating 
things such as increasing the frequency of recycling pick-ups, supporting 
composting, pay-by-the bag solid waste, public recycling bins, etc. 

PW, BoS 
Fin. Dept, 

PW  
Short Term 

31 Strategy Encourage commercial businesses to implement a dedicated recycling policy. PD, CoC Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 24 

32 GOAL 
STRIVE FOR MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS THAT ARE SUSTAINABLE & 
RESILIENT.  

33 Policy Lead by demonstrating sustainable values and practices. 

34 Strategy 
Strive toward net zero by incorporating green building standards into RFPs 
and other consideration for public building projects. BoS & PD Ongoing 

35 Strategy Create an environmental impact policy when planning special town events to
establish minimum standards. 

BoS, TM, 
Dept. Heads 

Short Term 

36 Strategy Integrate sustainability criteria into capital planning. 
TM, BoS, 

Dept. 
Heads, BB 

Ongoing 

37 Strategy Locate new public facilities comprising at least 75% of new municipal growth-
related capital investments in designated growth areas. 

TM 
& BoS Ongoing 

387 Policy Operate a safe, clean, and efficient fleet of vehicles. 

398 Strategy Prioritize carbon emissions reduction when purchasing new vehicles BoS, PSC & 
PW 

Short Term 

4039 Strategy Develop anti-idling policies for public fleet vehicles, contractors, suppliers,
and vendors, when appropriate to reduce carbon emissions. 

BoS, Dept. 
Heads, TM, 

BoS 
Short Term 

410 Policy Incorporate climate change risk assessment and adaptation into public 
facilities and services planning 

421 Strategy 
Develop criteria to include climate change vulnerability and risk assessment of 
projects that are proposed for inclusion in the capital improvement program.  TM, BoS Short Term 

432 Strategy 

Develop a policy to utilize the Maine Climate Council’s guidance on planning 
and preparing for sea level rise when identifying appropriate sites for new 
construction or redevelopment of town-owned structures and critical 
infrastructure. 

PW, TM, 
BoS Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 25 

Chapter 14: Fiscal Capacity Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL 
CONTINUE TO PLAN FOR AND FINANCE PUBLIC FACILITIES AND 
SERVICES TO ACCOMMODATE ANTICIPATED GROWTH AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT. 

2 Policy Finance existing and future facilities and services in a cost-effective
manner. 

3 Strategy Identify cost effective opportunities when extending public sewer, water, and
sidewalks when reviewing development proposals. PB & PD Ongoing 

4 Strategy 
Explore opportunities to work with neighboring communities to plan for and 
finance shared or adjacent capital investments to increase cost savings and 
efficiencies. 

TM Ongoing 

Chapter 15: Recreation & Cultural Resources Responsible 
Party 

Timeframe 

1 GOAL 
PROVIDE HIGH QUALITY PARKS AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 
AND THE FINEST PROGRAMS, ATHLETICS, EVENTS, AND LEISURE 
ACTIVITIES. 

2 Policy 
Continue to offer an array of recreational and cultural programs, 
classes, and opportunities for residents of all ages and identify 
opportunities to enhance recreational and cultural resources. 

3 Strategy Support the creation of a Parks Master Plan. RC & PRD Short Term 

4 Strategy Maintain and expand virtual recreation and cultural opportunities. RC & PRD Ongoing 

5 Strategy 
Identify locations for programs such as splash pad, sports fields, roller 
hockey, pickle ball, and other uses identified by the Parks and Recreation 
Department and residents as part of a Parks Master Plan. 

RC & PRD Short Term 

6 Strategy Identify public locations that could be used year-round for community 
gatherings as a part of a Parks Master Plan 

RC & PRD Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 26 

7 Strategy 
Involve residents in long-term recreational and cultural resource planning 
efforts. RC & PRD Ongoing 

8 Strategy Continue to support the Recreation Department in programming and
facilities needs. 

RC & BoS Ongoing 

9 Strategy 
Encourage businesses, non-profits, and the RSU 21 to better 
communicate with residents and others about cultural programs in an 
organized and central location such as a community calendar. 

L Short Term 

10 Strategy Continue to host seasonal events that provide social and cultural
opportunities for residents and visitors. 

RC, L, KHS, 
CoC, KBA 

Ongoing 

11 Strategy 
Work with public and private partners to extend and maintain a network 
of trails for motorized and nonmotorized uses. Connect with regional 
trail systems where possible. 

PD & CC Ongoing 

12 Strategy 
Work with an existing local land trust or other conservation organizations 
to pursue opportunities to protect important open space or recreational 
land. 

CC Ongoing 

13 Strategy 

Provide educational materials regarding the benefits and protections for 
landowners allowing public recreational access on their property. At a 
minimum this will include information on Maine’s landowner liability law 
regarding recreational or harvesting use, Title 14, M.R.S.A. §159-A. 

PD Ongoing 

141 GOAL MAINTAIN AND EXPAND ACCESS TO THE SHORE AND RIVERS FOR 
RECREATIONAL USES. 

152 Policy Enhance public access to the water for recreational use. 

163 Strategy Create a public boat launch. BoS, CC Medium Term 

174 Strategy Where parking is appropriate, install signs that indicate points of interest,
parking, and public rights-of-way to the water. 

RC, PW Medium Term 

185 GOAL PREPARE FOR CLIMATE CHANGE. 

196 Policy Integrate climate vulnerability and adaptation into recreational 
planning efforts. 

2017 Strategy 
Identify undeveloped land that is vulnerable to sea-level rise and make 
recommendations on acquisition to act as flooding buffer. CC & BoS Short Term 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 27 

2118 Strategy Identify recreational assets that are vulnerable to sea level rise. 
RC, PRD & 

PD Short Term 

2219 Policy Incorporate adaptation strategies into facility design. 

230 Strategy Review parks for adequate canopy cover and plant additional shade trees 
when necessary. 

RC & STC Ongoing 

241 Strategy Evaluate the use of pervious surfaces and other green infrastructure in 
parks to reduce stormwater runoff. 

RC & PW Ongoing 

Chapter 16: Hazard Mitigation Responsible 
Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL MITIGATE VULNERABILITY TO NATURAL HAZARDS, HUMAN-MADE 
HAZARDS, AND CLIMATE CHANGE. 

2 Policy Plan and prepare for hazards. 

3 Strategy Continue to participate in multi-hazard mitigation plan updates and 
encourage public participation in this process. PSC Ongoing 

4 Strategy 
Continue to partner with regional entities and communities to enhance 
evacuation route planning and community education on evacuation routes. PSC Ongoing 

5 Strategy Continue to partner with regional entities and communities to identify 
additional options for shelters. 

PSC Ongoing 

6 Strategy Incorporate planning for pandemics into existing hazard mitigation and 
emergency operations plans to increase preparedness for future pandemics. EM & PH Ongoing 

7 Strategy Encourage participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. CEO, PD Ongoing 

8 Strategy Evaluate the applicability of the Community Rating System in 
Kennebunkport. 

CEO & BoS Medium 
Term 

9 Strategy Educate the public about hazards and strategies to avoid potential damage 
and injury. 

EM & PD Ongoing 

10 Strategy Keep the Town’s emergency operations plan current. EMA Ongoing 

11 Strategy 
Review and update as needed a disaster recovery policy to maintain 
municipal operations. BoS, EM, HD Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 28 

12 Policy Increase community resilience to climate change impacts. 

13 Strategy 
Complete the Maine Flood Resilience Checklist to assess coastal 
vulnerabilities. PD Short Term 

14 Strategy 
As part of the Climate Action Plan, assess non-coastal vulnerabilities to 
establish a comprehensive understanding of current and future climate 
change impacts to people, infrastructure, and natural resources. 

PD Short Term 

15 Strategy 
Seek applicable grant opportunities that will fund projects that will increase 
understanding of vulnerability and mitigate vulnerability. PD Ongoing 

16 Strategy 
Continue to participate in regional efforts to assess and mitigate 
vulnerability. BoS & PD Ongoing 

17 Strategy Continue to incorporate climate adaptation into future updates to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

GPC Ongoing 

18 Strategy Incorporate hazard mitigation analysis review into planning and zoning 
reviews. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

19 Strategy 
Ensure adequate funding for emergency services, critical infrastructure 
protection, public health services, and hazard identification and mitigation. BoS, BB, TM Ongoing 

Chapter 17: Regional Coordination Responsible 
Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL COORDINATE WITH OTHER COMMUNITIES IN THE REGION 

2 Policy Maintain cooperative agreements with nearby communities that are mutually 
beneficial. 

3 Strategy 
Continue to participate in partnerships that support sustainability and resilience, 
multi-model transportation, river management, aquifer protection, and other 
regional considerations. 

BoS Ongoing 

4 Strategy 
Continue to participate in regional partnerships that support public safety, 
education, communication, emergency management, and other basic services. BoS Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 29 

Chapter 18: Future Land Use 
Responsible 

Party Timeframe 

1 GOAL KEEP THE LAND USE ORDINANCE CURRENT AND ALIGNED WITH THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

2 Policy Regularly review and amend the LUO. 
3 Strategy Identify necessary amendments to the LUO on an annual or regular basis. PB & PD Ongoing 

4 Strategy Perform a review of the LUO for consistency with the comprehensive plan and 
make recommendations for warrant articles.  PD Medium 

Term 

5 Strategy 
Review uses in Free Enterprise and Farm and Forest Zones and make 
recommendations for warrant articles.  PD 

Medium 
Term 

6 Strategy Create educational curriculum for boards and committees that are responsible for 
land use decisions and make available to the public. 

PD Short Term 

7 GOAL ENSURE ORDERLY GROWTH AND PREVENT SPRAWL. 

8 Policy 
Encourage growth adjacent to current village centers.  Growth should be 
compatible with and integrated with the existing infrastructure and built 
environment. 

9 Strategy Conduct a build-out analysis on a periodic basis to understand opportunities and
constraints to growth. 

PD Long Term 

10 Strategy 
Review the impact of Growth Management permits on a periodic basis to 
determine its effectiveness in directing growth in a manner that is consistent with 
this Comprehensive Plan. 

GPC & PD Short Term 

11 Strategy 
Develop a long-term plan for sewer and water expansion to accommodate future 
growth. PW & PD Long Term 

12 Strategy Incorporate Traditional Neighborhood Design (TND) principals in the subdivision
regulations for growth areas. 

PB & PD Medium 
Term 

13 Strategy 
Review LUO to ensure consistency with LD 2003, An Act To Implement the 
Recommendations of the Commission To Increase Housing Opportunities in 
Maine by Studying Zoning and Land Use Restrictions. 

PD Short Term 

14 Policy To coordinate the community’s land use strategies with other local and 
regional land use planning efforts. 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 30 

15 Strategy Track new development in the community by type and location. PD Ongoing 

16 Strategy 
Provide the code enforcement officer with the tools, training, and support 
necessary to enforce land use regulations, and ensure that the Code Enforcement 
Officer is certified in accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. §4451. 

TM, BB, & 
BOS Ongoing 

17 Policy To support the level of financial commitment necessary to provide needed 
infrastructure in growth areas. 

18 Strategy 
Periodically (at least every five years) evaluate implementation of the plan in 
accordance with Section 2.7. PD & GPC Long Term 

194 GOAL ENSURE PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE COAST. 
2015 Policy Establish new public access points. 

2116 Strategy Identify coastal properties that may be appropriate for more public access. RC & PD Medium 
Term 

2217 Strategy Promote land acquisition for the establishment of access for small watercraft. BoS Medium 
Term 

2318 GOAL PRESERVE KENNEBUNKPORT’S OPEN SPACE AND RURAL CHARACTER. 
2419 Policy Identify land that warrants protection and set priorities. 

250 Strategy 
In collaboration with the Kennebunkport Conservation Trust, identify goals and a 
process for land conservation and planning for climate change and present 
recommendations to Selectboard. 

 KCT, PD & 
CC Ongoing 

261 Strategy 
Support Kennebunkport Conservation Trust in its goals of connecting open space 
to allow habitat for wildlife and endangered species, and the enjoyment of the 
natural environment. 

PB & PD Ongoing 

272 Strategy Educate the public about the benefits of conservation easements. CC Ongoing 

283 Strategy Establish a development impact fee to fund land conservation and recreation. PD, TM & 
BoS 

Medium 
Term 

294 GOAL MAINTAIN KENNEBUNKPORT’S SMALL TOWN CHARACTER. 

3025 Policy 
Maintain the aesthetic, historic, and architectural character of 
Kennebunkport’s neighborhoods. 

3126 Strategy Encourage connecting streets, a pedestrian-friendly environment, and small-scale, 
neighborhood commercial services that are geared toward serving local residents. 

PB & PD Ongoing 



KENNEBUNKPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – VOLUME 2 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES APPENDIX A| 31 

3227 Strategy Preserve Goose Rocks Beach as a safe, limited use, and family-oriented beach. BoS & BAC Ongoing 

3328 Strategy 
Develop the Village Parcel in a manner that is consistent with Kennebunkport’s 
small-town character. PB & PD 

Medium 
Term 

3429 GOAL PLAN FOR A CHANGING CLIMATE. 

350 Policy Steer growth away from areas that will be vulnerable to hazards caused by 
climate change. 

361 Strategy Develop standards for new development in areas that are vulnerable to sea level
rise (SLR) and ground water rise that is induced by SLR. PB & PD Medium 

Term 

372 Strategy 
Complete and maintain the inventory of Town-owned parcels and research 
allowed uses. Climate change impacts should be considered for future uses. BoS & PD Short Term 



AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 147, ARTICLE II 

§ 147-14 Permit required.
No person, firm or corporation, including utility companies, may make any excavation for 
the construction, repair or replacement of any underground facility in any street, sidewalk 
or public parking lot without having first obtained a permit as herein required. Every permit 
granted shall specify the time during which the excavation may remain open, the place 
where the excavation may be made, and the approximate number of square yards that 
may be disturbed. This section shall not apply to the State of Maine for work performed 
within the State right of way.. 

§ 147-15 Emergency excavations.
Notwithstanding the provisions of § 147-14, emergency excavation for the construction, 
repair or maintenance of an underground facility in any street, sidewalk or public parking 
lot may be undertaken, provided that a permit is applied for on the first working day after 
such excavation is commenced. 

§ 147-16 Permit applications.
A. Permit applications may be obtained at the Town office.
B. The permit application shall be completed by the owner of the property to be
benefited by the work which necessitates the permit or by the owner's authorized 
representative. Where the excavation is undertaken by a utility company on its own 
behalf, the application shall be completed by such company. 
C. A completed application, together with an application fee as set by the Board of
Selectmen, shall be submitted to the Director of Public Works. The party applying for a 
permit must also file a map or sketch with the Director of Public Works, showing the 
location and size of any cuts to be made. After review, the Director of Public Works shall 
forward the application to the Selectmen along with his recommendations. The 
SelectmenDirector of Public Works, applying the standards of this article, may approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the application, for any streets that are not under a 5-
year moratorium.  Any applications for street openings within a moratorium period will 
be forwarded to the Selectboard for disposition. . After approval or approval with 
conditions by the Selectmen, the Director of Public Works shall issue a permit 
conditioned as required by the Selectmen. 
[Amended 11-3-2020] 

§ 147-17 Bond.

A. No such permit shall be issued unless and until the permittee has filed with the Town
Clerk a performance bond in accordance with the following schedule: 

Item 6b



(1) Minimum of $52,000 for cross-cut for all openings.;
(2) $2,000 for parallel openings not exceeding 100 feet in length; or
(3) $20 per foot for parallel openings in excess of 100 feet in length.

B. Such bond shall have as surety a corporation licensed to do business in the State of
Maine as a surety company, and shall extend for a term of at least two years after 
completion of the project. An equivalent amount of cash or certified funds payable to the 
Town may be deposited for the same purpose in lieu of the surety bond required by this 
section. 

C. The Selectmen may, in their discretion, require surety in an amount greater than
those set forth in the preceding schedule or, as recommended by the Public Works 
Director based on scope of work, for a term in excess of two years in projects where 
they determine that the project, because of its nature, magnitude, or unusual 
circumstances, warrants such additional security. 

D. Notwithstanding any of the above requirements, the Selectmen are hereby given the
authority to allow utility companies to perform their own repairs, in lieu of posting any 
other surety or performance bond required by this section under the direction of the 
Public Works Director., to instead post an annual bond of $15,000 for the purposes set 
forth in this section. 

E. Applicants other than utility companies may post an aggregate bond in January of
each year to secure a designated number of cuts during that year. The terms of that 
bond and per-cut amount shall be as provided herein for single-cut bonds. Any portion 
of such an aggregate bond not used by December 31 of the year it was posted may not, 
without approval of the Board of Selectmen, be carried over to the following year. 

§ 147-18 Insurance.
A certificate of insurance shall be required with limits of public liability coverage deemed 
by the Selectmen to be sufficient to provide adequate protection to the Town, its citizens 
and the general public. 

§ 147-19 Excavation; care required.

A. Prior to excavation work, notice shall be given to the persons maintaining any
underground facility, or to the municipal department or officer charged with the care 
thereof, which may be injured or affected by the making of any such excavation. Such 



notice shall be made in accordance with state law, as described in 23 M.R.S.A. § 3360-
A. 
B. Every excavation must be done in a skillful manner. Each permittee shall obtain
information as to the existence and location of all underground facilities and protect the 
same against damage. 
C. No injury may be done to any underground facility in the making of excavations. In
order to avoid such injury, an excavator may not use mechanical means of excavation 
when excavating within 18 inches of any unmarked underground facilities until such 
facilities have been exposed. Notwithstanding this limitation, mechanical means are 
permitted, as reasonably necessary, for initial penetration and removal of pavement, 
rock, or other materials requiring the use of mechanical means of excavation. 

D. No damage may be done to any tree or shrub or the roots thereof in the making of
any such excavation. The owner of such tree or shrub shall be compensated by the 
permittee for any damage done. 

E. Except by permission of the Director of Public Works, an excavator may not leave
open at any time a trench or excavation of a greater length than 200 feet. 

F. The above requirements are not intended to supersede State or Federal requirements.

§ 147-20 Restoring surface; minimum standards.

A. Any person, firm or corporation making any excavation in or under any street,
sidewalk or public parking lot shall restore the surface to its original condition or better, 
in accordance with the minimum standards contained herein. 

B. Excavation work, including procedures and materials, shall conform to said minimum
standards and to such other standards of the Director of Public Works as may be 
adopted by the Selectmen as a condition of permit approval. 

C. Minimum standards shall include the following:

(1) In all cases, replaced bituminous asphalt shall include a grinded joint where it joints
existing unimproved bituminous asphalt. 

(2) Parallel, diagonal, cross or right-angle streetAll street openings temporary repairs
shall be conducted in the following manner up to five feet in width or 10 feet in length 
shall: 



 Pavement shall be saw cut with clean lines a minimum of 1 foot beyond the
perimeter of the excavation. 

 Be backfilled with ¾” crushed packing gravel and compacted until 95%
compaction is achieved. 

 After proper compaction is achieved, include new bituminous asphalt consisting
of 42.5 inches of binder or base mix (19mm) applied in two, 2” lifts should be 
installed and properly compacted. Tack coat shall be applied to all edges., or 
thickness equivalent to the existing bituminous asphalt, whichever is greater, and 
one inch of surface mix confined within the limit of the opening. 

(3) All street opening permanent repairs shall be conducted in the following manner
after one year/frost cycle (See detail/cross sections below.): 

 Pavement shall be cold milled to a depth of 1-1.5 inches at a minimum distance
of 6 inches beyond the perimeter of the temporary repair. 

 Tack coat shall be applied to all milled surfaces at a rate of .06 - .08 gal./sq. yd
 The cold milled area will be overlayed with 9.5 mm surface mix asphalt as per

MDOT requirements. 









(3) Parallel, diagonal, cross or right-angle street openings in excess of five feet in width,
but less than 10 feet in width, or up to 10 feet in length, but less than 20 feet in length, 
shall include new bituminous asphalt consisting of 2.5 inches of binder or base mix, or 
thickness equivalent to the existing bituminous asphalt, whichever is greater, confined 



within the limit of the opening. The full width of the paved street or sidewalk shall be 
paved five feet beyond the end of the opening and five feet prior to the beginning of the 
opening with not less than one inch of surface mix. 

(4) Parallel, diagonal, cross or right-angle street openings in excess of 10 feet in width
or 20 feet in length shall include new bituminous asphalt consisting of 2.5 inches of 
binder or base mix, or thickness equivalent to the existing bituminous asphalt, 
whichever is greater, confined within the limit of the opening. The full width of the paved 
street or sidewalk shall be paved 20 feet beyond the end of the opening and 20 feet 
prior to the beginning of the opening with not less than one inch of surface mix. 

§ 147-21 Excavations in reconstructed streets.
[Added 11-3-2020] 

Whenever the Town has developed plans to reconstruct a street, the Town or its 
representative shall give written notice thereof to all abutting property owners, to the Town 
departments, and to all public utilities that have or may wish to lay pipes, wires or other 
facilities in or under the highway. Upon receipt of such written notice, such person or utility 
shall have 60 days in which to install or lay any such facility. If an extension of time is 
needed by a person or utility for the installation of such facilities, the person or facility 
shall make a written application to the Town during the sixty-day notice period explaining 
fully the reasons for requesting such an extension of time. At the expiration of the time 
fixed or extended and after such street has been reconstructed, no permit shall be granted 
to open such street for a period of five years from installation of hot-mixed asphalt surface 
course layer unless an emergency condition exists or unless the necessity for making 
such installation could not reasonably have been foreseen at the time such notice was 
given. The above-mentioned five-year moratorium for street openings also pertains to all 
new public or private streets, i.e., new subdivisions or developments that have been 
accepted in accordance with Town specifications. The Town shall publish an annual 
street opening moratorium list with year of notice and year of expiration for each street. 
This section should not be construed to supersede Maine DOT street opening regulations 
for roads maintained by the State of Maine. 

Restoring surface; minimum standards. 
A. Any person, firm or corporation making any excavation in or under any street,
sidewalk or public parking lot shall restore the surface to its original condition or better, 
in accordance with the minimum standards contained herein. 



B. Excavation work, including procedures and materials, shall conform to said minimum
standards and to such other standards of the Director of Public Works as may be 
adopted by the Selectmen as a condition of permit approval. 

C. Minimum standards shall include the following:

(1) In all cases, replaced bituminous asphalt shall include a grinded joint where it joints
existing unimproved bituminous asphalt. 

(2) All street opening temporary repairs shall be conducted in the following manner as
indicated in § 147-20 C.2 : 

 Pavement shall be saw cut with clean lines a minimum of 1 foot beyond the
perimeter of the excavation. 

 Be backfilled with ¾” crushed packing gravel and compacted until 95%
compaction is achieved. 

 After proper compaction is achieved, new bituminous asphalt consisting of 4
inches of binder or base mix (19mm) applied in two, 2” lifts should be installed and 
properly compacted. Tack coat shall be applied to all edges. 

(3) All street opening permanent repair shall be conducted in the following manner after
one year/frost cycle as indicated in § 147-20 C.2 with the exception of the increased 
milling/overlay distance requirement indicated below  : 

 Pavement shall be cold milled to a depth of 1.5 inches at a minimum distance
of 20 feet beyond the perimeter of the temporary repair. 

 Tack coat shall be applied to all milled surfaces at a rate of .06 - .08 gal./sq. yd
 The cold milled area will be overlayed with 9.5 mm surface mix asphalt as per

MDOT requirements. 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT 
101 Main Street 

Kennebunkport, ME 04046 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Fr: Police Chief Craig A. Sanford 
Re: Cruiser Replacement 
Dt: August 1, 2023 

I have information from our local Ford dealer that the ordering and receipt of a new 
police vehicle are still unpredictable. Ford is still dealing with issues caused by the 
pandemic causing major delays and last-minute cancelation of orders. With this 
information, I contacted the supplier I used last year (McGovern Municipal), and they 
have cruisers available on the lot.  

I am asking to be authorized to purchase the quoted vehicle for $39,115.35. I have 
$41,000 in the current budget for this purchase. The quote includes the trade-in of a 
2018 Dodge Charger with 122,785 miles on the odometer. This reading does not 
include miles added for idle time: that would put the actual mileage well over 150,000 
miles. I hope we can return to the normal bidding process next year. 

Item 7



Page 1 of 1

Date: 7/31/23

Customer ID:

Cory Prehl

978-302-8394

Qty Item # Description Unit Price Line Total

1.00 K8A 2023 Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD Black 41,883.00$   41,883.00$ 

1.00 43D Dark Car Feature 24.25$   24.25$ 

1.00 51R Driver Side Unity LED Spotlight 383.15$   383.15$ 

1.00 549 Power Heated Mirrors 58.20$   58.20$ 

1.00 76R Reverse Sensing System 266.75$   266.75$ 

1.00 53M SYNC Voice Activated System -$   -$ 

1.00 86P Front Headlamp Housing -$   -$ 

1.00 87R Rear View Camera Relocate to Mirror -$   -$ 

1.00 18D Rear Liftgate Lock Disable Delete -$   -$ 

1.00 -$ 

-$ 

1.00 TRADE VIN:2C3CDXAG6JH193407 (18 Dodge Charger 122,785 miles) (3,500.00)$   (3,500.00)$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

Custom or Special Orders are Non-Refundable Vehicle Subtotal $42,615.35

This Estimate is for Budgetary Purposes and is Not a Guarantee of Cost for 

Services. Trade Subtotal -$3,500.00

Estimate is Based on Current Information From Client About the Project 

Requirments Grand Total $39,115.35

Actual Cost May Change Once Project Elements are Finalized

Estimate

Salesperson:

Kennebunkport Police Department To:

Special Instructions:

McGovern Municipal Headquarters 1200 Worcester Road Framingham, MA 01702



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



MEMORANDUM 

To: Select Board 
Fr: Nicole Evangelista 
Re: FY23 Carryforward Request 
Dt: August 3, 2023 

Each year, once the final invoices from FY23 have been paid, the Board considers 
carryforward requests from departments. Upon examination of the year-end figures, which 
are still pending, we anticipate a positive financial year-end result. We exceeded our 
budgeted revenue projections by $356,000 and came in under $1.6 million in expenses. 

Please review the carryforward list that is attached, which totals $192,320. 

Item 8



Account Name FY23 Balance Amount Justification

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Admin 68,879.48
Admin Salaries 3,000.00 Finance Vacation Coverage
Admin Salaries 3,000.00 Overtime Coverage
Admin Contingency 5,000.00 Administrative Support and Recognition of Departments
Admin Office Supplies 4,000.00 Fire Proof Filing Cabinet for Personnel Files

Total Admin 15,000.00 Article 5 General Government

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Planning 47,022.95
Planning Vehicles & Equipment 750.00 Body Repair to Subaru

Total Planning 750.00 Article 5 General Government

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Police 189,145.79
Police Salaries 10,000.00 Pay Rate Differential for Sergeant's Position
Police Training 5,800.00 NARCAN administration training - New State Mandate

Total Police 15,800.00 Article 6 Public Safety

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Communications 73,182.97
Communications Salaries 17,000.00 Dispatch Coverage During Training for New Employee

Total Communications 17,000.00 Article 6 Public Safety

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Fire 8,806.27
Fire Recognition 800.00 Regional Training Event
Fire Vehicles & Equipment 4,800.00 Body Work Car 1

Total Fire 5,600.00 Article 6 Public Safety

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Health & Welfare 26,639.78
Operating Supplies 1,000.00 Purchase Medical Supplies
Building Maintenance 1,300.00 Ramp Repair/Maintenance, Painting, Floorwork, Ceiling Light Repair
Unacceptable Waste 500.00 Disposal of Hazardous Waste

Total Health & Welfare 2,800.00 Article 7 Health & Welfare

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Highway 119,837.80
Highway 67,000.00 Pier Road Causeway Grant Match
Highway 25,000.00 S-Brook Culvert Replacement and Repairs
Highway Buildings 8,370.00 Reznor Heater, Material & Labor (supply lag)

Total Highway 100,370.00 Article 8 Public Works

FY23 Budget Ending Balance - Contingency 109,373.00
Contingency - Salaries 25,000.00 Salary Market Adjustments
Contingency - Selectmen's 10,000.00 Boat Ramp and Other Projects (Unknown)

Total Contingency 35,000.00 Article 9 Recreation, Culture, Contingency

Total FY23 Carryforward Requests 192,320.00

Town of Kennebunkport
FY23 Carryforward Request



FY23 Received % of FY23 Expended % of

Budget Thru 6/30 Budget Budget Thru 6/30 Budget

General Fund General Fund
  Property Tax Revenue 20,779,326 20,789,173 100%   General Government 1,258,815 1,173,390 93%
  Auto Excise 1,100,000 1,218,391 111%   Legal 68,000 94,545 139%
  Boat Excise 14,000 14,867 106%   Insurance 233,098 206,894 89%
  State Revenue Sharing 185,000 240,046 130%   Planning & Codes 687,230 640,207 93%
  Homestead Exemption 90,228 108,405 120%   Police Dept/EMA/ACO 1,993,180 1,802,308 90%
  Local Road Assistance Program 40,000 43,224 108%   Communications 578,305 505,122 87%
  Tree Growth/Veterans Exemption 8,300 8,272 100%   Fire Dept 471,358 462,552 98%
  General Assistance 1,000 183 18%   KEMS 200,000 200,000 100%
  BETE Reimbursement 4,193 4,235 101%   Harbormaster 51,900 13,681 26%
  PILOT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) 13,500 10,000 74%   Solid Waste 578,436 517,454 89%
  RSU-School Resource Officers 249,058 194,163 78%   Health/Welfare/Social Services 215,773 187,244 87%
  Interest on Taxes 40,000 21,651 54%   Public Restrooms 36,000 29,822 83%
  Charges for Services 62,400 95,160 153%   Highway 1,221,600 1,101,762 90%
  Building/Plumbing Permits 570,000 596,385 105%   Fire Hydrants/Street Lights 168,324 153,826 91%
  Parking Violations 50,000 42,324 85%   Shade Tree 61,181 44,175 72%
  Goose Rocks Beach 200,000 259,751 130%   Cemetery/Parsons Way 18,755 16,153 86%
  Short Term Rental Licenses 160,000 173,853 109%   Recreation 341,845 307,116 90%
  Sale of Town Property 0 0 100%   Graves/Cape Porpoise Libraries 169,550 169,550 100%
  Investment Income 30,000 328,130 1094%   Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Reserve 51,738 59,476 115%
  Miscellaneous 12,000 17,649 147%   Overlay 860,774 71,885 8%
  Transfer from Dock Square 301,000 301,000 100%   Contingency 139,000 29,627 21%
  Transfer from Sewer 30,000 30,000 100%   Agencies 10,475 9,144 87%
  Transfer from Capital Projects 700,000 700,000 100%   Capital Outlay 2,180,300 2,180,300 100%
  Transfer from SR/Recreation 445,000 445,000 100%   Debt Service 1,246,931 1,242,630 100%
  Use of Fund Balance 200,000 0 0%   Education Appropriation 11,349,467 11,349,467 100%
  Carryforwards 210,000 210,000 100%   County  Appropriation 1,302,970 1,302,970 100%
     Total Revenue 25,495,005 25,851,862 101%      Total Expenditures 25,495,005 23,871,301 94%

Budget Difference - End of FY23 (356,857) 1,623,704

Town of Kennebunkport

FY23 Revenues FY23 Expenses

Statement of Revenues & Expenses as of June 30, 2023



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



6 ELM ST, KENNEBUNKPORT, ME 04046 
T (207) 967-1604 |E WGILLIAM@KENNEBUNKPORTME.GOV 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

-INCORPORATED 1653-

To: Kennebunkport Selectboard 

Fr: Werner Gilliam Director of Planning and Development 

Dt: August 1st, 2023 

Re: Cliff Mix Dyke Rd Beach Access Agreement 

Background 

As part of a ROW Discovery Grant the town commissioned a survey of Dyke Road 

ROW (Exhibit A), and also known as the Old Seaweed Road (and the New 

Adams Road), which public right-of-way provides public access from the Kings 

Highway southerly down to the sea at Goose Rocks Beach. That survey discovered 

existing improvements located within the bounds of the Old Seaweed Road right-

of-way on the western portion of the Mix Property, including a concrete post and 

wood rail fence, a stone wall and a granite boulder sea wall, as depicted on the 

Dow & Coulombe Plan, which collectively run more or less parallel with the 

easterly edge of the right-of-way. It has been documented and verified that some 

or all of the existing fencing, stone wall and seawall features shown on the Dow & 

Coulombe Plan may have extended continuously into the public right-of-way, for 

a period in excess of forty (40) years. 

The Town and the Mixes share a mutual interest and desire to maintain the Old 

Seaweed Road public right-of-way, to remove invasive vegetation species from 

the area, and to replant native species that will help maintain the integrity and 

conservation of the sand dune.  

Mix also wishes to: 

(a) construct and maintain certain improvements within the bounds of the Old

Seaweed Road public right-of-way,

(b) improve and maintain the features presently existing within the right-of-way,

which improvements are shown on a plan prepared by Lower Village Survey

dated November 22, 2022 (as revised July 8, 2023) Exhibit B

Item 9



2 

Proposed Agreement 

The Town Attorney has reviewed all of the associated history and information 

and is recommending that we memorialize the current status of the Old Seaweed 

Road. This will ensure public access as is currently known and will prevent future 

encroachments. 

In that spirit both parties wish to memorialize the terms of an agreement that 

addresses the contemplated vegetation removal and replanting project, formally 

recognize the existing improvements that currently exist in the area and 

authorizes new improvements that are anticipated to be undertaken in 

connection with the project.  

As part of the agreement Mix acknowledges and admits to the Board of 

Selectmen, in accordance with 23 M.R.S. § 2952, that the extension of fencing 

and/or stone wall to the north in the area labeled on Exhibit B as Area #1 are 

improvements that encroach within and wrongfully occupy the true bounds and 

limits of the public right-of-way. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement does not address, delineate, 

diminish, or alter the Parties’ respective property rights in relation to Old 

Seaweed Road; the width of Old Seaweed Road or the public right of way; the 

existence or legal effect of the existence of existing improvements located in or 

around Old Seaweed Road; or the boundary lines between property owned by 

Mix and the Town, if any.   





OWER   ILLAGE    URVEY C.O



1 

 

AGREEMENT  
 

 The Margaret P. Mix Real Estate Trust, Clifton P. Mix, Sarah C. Dorfmeister, and 
Douglas P. Mix (“Mix”), the owners of property at 797 Kings Highway in Kennebunkport, York 
County, Maine (the “Property”), and the Town of Kennebunkport (the “Town”) (referred to 
collectively as “the Parties”) hereby enter this agreement regarding vegetation and improvements 
located in and around a sand path known as Old Seaweed Road (also known as Dyke Road and 
New Adams Road). 
 

WHEREAS, Mix is the owner of a certain lot or parcel of land, with the building and 
improvements thereon, located off of Kings Highway, in the Town of Kennebunkport, County of 
York and State of Maine, on Kennebunkport Tax Map 34, Block 1, Lot 13, and as more 
particularly described in a deed from Margaret P. Mix to Margaret P. Mix and Clifton P. Mix, 
Co-Trustees of the Margaret P. Mix Real Estate Trust u/a October 30, 2019 dated December 11, 
2019 and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in Book 18130, Page 709 (the “Mix 
Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, there exists a Town right-of-way to the west of the Mix Property commonly 

referred to as the Dyke Road ROW, and also known as the Old Seaweed Road (and the New 
Adams Road), which public right-of-way provides public access from the Kings Highway 
southerly down to the sea at Goose Rocks Beach (hereafter referred to as the Old Seaweed 
Road); and 

 
WHEREAS, the boundaries of the Old Seaweed Road have been laid out by a boundary 

survey and depicted on a plan prepared by Dow & Coulombe, Inc., dated July 2, 2013, which 
plan is attached as Exhibit A, showing a three-rod road (approximately 49.5 feet wide), which 
road was laid out by the York County Commissioners as a town road in 1827; and  

 
WHEREAS, there are now existing improvements (“Existing Improvements”) located 

within the bounds of the Old Seaweed Road right-of-way on the western portion of the Mix 
Property, including a concrete post and wood rail fence, a stone wall and a granite boulder sea 
wall, as depicted on the Dow & Coulombe Plan, which collectively run more or less parallel with 
the easterly edge of the right-of-way; and  

 
WHEREAS, some or all of the existing fencing, stone wall and seawall features shown 

on the Dow & Coulombe Plan may have extended continuously into the public right-of-way, for 
a period in excess of  forty (40) years; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties share a mutual interest and desire to maintain the Old Seaweed 

Road public right-of-way, to remove invasive vegetation species from the area, and to replant 
native species that will help maintain the integrity and conservation of the sand dune; and 
 

WHEREAS, Mix now wishes to (a) construct and maintain certain improvements within 
the bounds of the Old Seaweed Road public right-of-way, (b) improve and maintain the features 
presently existing within the right-of-way, which improvements described in (a) and (b) are 
shown on a plan prepared by Lower Village Survey dated November 22, 2022 (as revised July 8, 
2023) and have been approved by the Board of Selectmen at its meeting on ____________ and 



2 

 

attached hereto as Exhibit B, and (c) remove invasive vegetation species and replant and 
maintain native vegetation species in order to maintain the integrity and conservation of the sand 
dune; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize the terms of an agreement that addresses the 
contemplated vegetation removal and replanting project, the Existing Improvements that 
currently exist in the area, new improvements that are anticipated to be undertaken in connection 
with the project, and the rights of the parties with respect to the proposed work to be conducted 
and new improvements to be constructed and maintained within the public right-of-way of Old 
Seaweed Road. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Parties enter this Agreement for other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy 
of which the Parties expressly acknowledge. 
 

2. Mix will undertake, at its sole expense and liability, restoration and maintenance of the 
Existing Improvements, as well as construction of the improvements (“New 
Improvements”) depicted on the Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B and approved by the 
Board of Selectmen at its meeting on ____________. The New Improvements include: 
(a) the replacement of the existing board fence with a similar open-type fence (labeled on 
Exhibit B as Area #2); (b) an extension of that fence northerly to Webster’s stone wall 
and southerly to a stone wall to be repaired and/or restored (labeled on Exhibit B as Area 
#1); (c) planting and maintenance of native vegetation species and removal of invasive 
species in accordance with a Vegetation Plan authorized by the Town; and (d) the  
restoration and maintenance of a granite boulder sea wall (labeled on Exhibit B as Area 
#3) (collectively, the “Improvements”).  Mix agrees that the restoration and maintenance 
of the granite boulder sea wall shall not result in further narrowing or encroachment into 
the public right-of-way. Mix agrees that there will be no material change(s) to the 
proposed plantings, alterations, and improvements depicted on Exhibit B and the 
Vegetation Plan without the prior written approval of the Board of Selectmen.   
 

3. Mix expressly acknowledges and covenants that said Improvements will be undertaken in 
compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, including the requirement, if 
any, to obtain any governmental permit, license, or approval.  This includes but is not 
limited to a Natural Resources Protection Act permit from the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection. 

 
4. Mix acknowledges, covenants, and assumes responsibility for the maintenance and 

upkeep of the Improvements contemplated herein and that the Town has no responsibility 
for any such maintenance and upkeep.  Mix further understands that the Town may 
damage some of the Improvements in the process of winter snowplowing or other road 
maintenance and Mix agrees that the Town will have no responsibility or liability 
whatsoever for the repair of any such damage.  Mix further acknowledges and 
understands that the Improvements may need to be disturbed to enable access for public 
safety purposes (police, fire, ambulance, and the like) and Mix releases the Town for 
damage for the same.   



3 

 

 
5. Mix acknowledges and admits to the Board of Selectmen, in accordance with 23 M.R.S. 

§ 2952, that the extension of fencing and/or stone wall to the north in the area labeled on 
Exhibit B as Area #1 are improvements that encroach within and wrongfully occupy the 
true bounds and limits of the public right-of-way which boundaries are as depicted on the 
Dow & Coulombe Plan (Exhibit A).  Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
Agreement does not address, delineate, diminish, or alter the Parties’ respective property 
rights in relation to Old Seaweed Road; the width of Old Seaweed Road or the public 
right of way; the existence or legal effect of the existence of existing improvements 
located in or around Old Seaweed Road; or the boundary lines between property owned 
by Mix and the Town, if any.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the Parties mutually 
agree and covenant that neither Party has acquired any additional rights by virtue of this 
Agreement, other than the express contractual rights set forth herein as adopted by the 
Board of Selectmen; that neither Party is waiving, releasing, or otherwise losing any 
right, claim, argument, defense, theory, remedy, or other legal position by virtue of this 
Agreement; and that both Parties expressly reserve all rights and claims that they had, 
currently have, or will have from the beginning of time to the present day regarding the 
subject matter herein.  

 
6. Mix shall maintain general liability in amounts sufficient to protect itself against risks 

associated with undertaking the Improvements contemplated by this Agreement.  Mix 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town from any and all claims arising from 
Mix’s performance under this Agreement, which obligation shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. Nothing herein is intended to shift responsibility from the Town to 
Mix for any other liability or to waive governmental immunity protections that the Town 
may enjoy by law related to the use or maintenance of Old Seaweed Road by members of 
the public, including but not limited to the Maine Tort Claims Act, 14 M.R.S. § 8103. 

  
7. This Agreement shall be recorded by Mix in the York County Registry of Deeds, with 

reference to the Deed of the Property to Mix dated July 30, 2019, and recorded in the 
York County Registry of Deeds at Book 18021, Page 90.  Further reference shall be made 
to a Deed from Margaret P. Mix to the Margaret P. Mix Real Estate Trust, u/a October 
30, 2019, and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds at Book 18130, Page 709. 

 
8. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties’ successors 

and assigns, unless the Parties, or their successors and assigns, mutually agree in writing 
to amend or release the terms herein. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mix has caused this instrument to be executed by Clifton 
Mix, thereunto duly authorized co-owner and representative, this _____ day of __________, 
2023.  
 
WITNESS:       
 
 
_______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
       Clifton Mix 

On behalf of the owners of 797 Kings 
Highway, Kennebunkport, Maine 
 

 
 
STATE OF MAINE 
YORK, ss.       __________, 2023 
 

Then personally appeared the above-named Clifton Mix, and acknowledged the 
foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacity.  
 
       Before me, 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Notary Public/ Maine Attorney-at-Law 
       Printed Name: ______________________ 
       My Commission expires: _____________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, acting by and through 
its Board of Selectmen has hereby executed this Agreement this _____ day of __________, 
2023.  

WITNESS: TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

______________________________ By:______________________________ 
Witness  Donald Michael Weston, Board Member  

and Chair 

______________________________ By:______________________________ 
Witness  Allen A. Daggett, Board Member  

and Vice Chair 

______________________________ By:______________________________ 
Witness  Sheila W. Matthews - Bull, Board Member 

______________________________ By:______________________________ 
Witness  Jon D. Dykstra, Board Member 

______________________________ By:______________________________ 
Witness  Marybeth Gilbert, Board Member 

STATE OF MAINE 
YORK, ss.  __________, 2023 

Then personally appeared the above-named Donald Michael Weston, Board Member and 
Chair of the Board of Selectmen of the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, and acknowledged the 
foregoing to be his free act and deed in his said capacity and the free act and deed of said TOWN 
OF KENNEBUNKPORT.  

Before me, 

______________________________ 
Notary Public/ Maine Attorney-at-Law 
Printed Name: ______________________ 
My Commission expires: _____________ 





OWER   ILLAGE    URVEY C.O



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust
PO Box 333
Kennebunkport, ME, 04046

July 25, 2023

Members of the Select Board
Town of Kennebunkport
6 Elm St
Kennebunkport, ME, 04046

Dear Members of the Select Board,

The Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust is excited to begin the Planning Board process for
our next neighborhood on Beachwood Ave. Thank you for your generosity in providing this
parcel of land and for your continued commitment to attainable housing for working families and
retired seniors in our community.

This letter is to request that all Town of Kennebunkport fees, in relation to the Planning Board
process, be waived for the Beachwood project. This request does not include abutter
notifications, newspaper publications, peer review escrow, or any other third party costs that
may be associated with our application.

Sincerely,

Larissa Crockett
Executive Director
Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust

Item 10



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith 

Fr: Chris Simeoni, Director of Public Works 

Re: Request for Street Opening Permits by George Burr & Sons Inc. for Langsford 
Road and Ocean Avenue 

Dt: August 1, 2023 

On July 30th, the Public Works Department received a request from George Burr & 
Sons Inc. for two street opening permits. One was for 27 Langsford Road (MBL 22-5-
3) to run an existing sump pump discharge line from the residence to a catch basin at
the edge of the road. The extent of the work is to excavate a 4’ x 5’ wide trench across
the sidewalk to access the catch basin and install a sump pump discharge line.
Currently, the line discharges onto the property. However, it flows onto the abutting
property, causing erosion and ponding issues.

The second permit request was for 271 Ocean Avenue (MBL 20-1-62) to run a new 
water service line to the residence. The extent of the work is to excavate a 5’ x 20’ 
wide trench across Ocean Avenue to access the existing water main and install new 
water laterally. 

Should the board wish to authorize the street openings, the following conditions should 
be met. For the Langsford Road permit request, an inspection of the residence 
basement/crawl space should be permitted by town personnel to simply check for 
concerns regarding any conditions that would result in an adverse discharge.  

Regarding the Ocean Avenue permit request, after properly backfilling and compacting 
the trench cut, George Burr & Sons Inc. will be required to base pave in the cut with 
4” of base pavement installed in 2” lifts. The cut will be allowed to sit for one year, at 
which point George Burr & Sons Inc. will be required to return to mill the existing 
pavement 20’ in either direction of the cut (curb to curb) to a depth of 1.5” and overlay 
the entire area with 1.5” of finish pavement. Any maintenance required on the cut prior 
to overlay will be the responsibility of George Burr & Sons Inc. It is my recommendation 
to approve the applications and issue the permits with the above conditions. 

Item 14



Item 14a



















Item 14b





















 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 15











 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 16





 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Published on Town of Kennebunkport, ME (https://www.kennebunkportme.gov)

Home > Boards & Committees > Boards and Committees Information > Online Application for Boards/Committees > Webform results > Online Application for
Boards/Committees

Submission information

Form: Online Application for Boards/Committees [1]

Submitted by Anonymous (not verified)
July 24, 2023 - 12:17pm
98.11.2.222

Choose from the following:
Board of Assessment Review

Please provide the following information:

Full Name
Michael E West

Email
kptplanning@gmail.com

Residential Address
33 Log Cabin Road

Residential Phone
7138164313

Business Address

Business Phone

Mailing Address (if different)

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport?
Yes

Please list Membership in community organizations, dates involved, and activities
performed:
Kennebunkport Planning Board - 1 year
Kennebunkport Elections Clerk - 2 years
Saco Learning Center Tutor - 1 year
Masonic Lodge 76 -3 years

Do you have any skills, experience, or training you would like to mention?

Item 17

https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/boards
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/boards-and-committees
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/node/2661/webform-results
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees


Civil Engineer and MBA
7+ year teaching GED/HiSET
20+ years Project Management experience
20+ years Regulatory Affairs experience

What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board or committee?
Community involvement

List the top 3 choices that you would like to serve on( 1. 2. 3. in desired order)?
Board of Assessment Review

Source URL: https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/node/2661/submission/19726

Links
[1] https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Published on Town of Kennebunkport, ME (https://www.kennebunkportme.gov)

Home > Boards & Committees > Boards and Committees Information > Online Application for Boards/Committees > Webform results > Online Application for
Boards/Committees

Submission information

Form: Online Application for Boards/Committees [1]

Submitted by Anonymous (not verified)
July 23, 2023 - 5:52pm
98.11.21.39

Choose from the following:

Please provide the following information:

Full Name
Ella Boxall

Email
ella.boxall@maine.edu

Residential Address
31 North Street, Kennebunkport Maine 04046

Residential Phone
2072866811

Business Address

Business Phone

Mailing Address (if different)

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport?
Yes

Please list Membership in community organizations, dates involved, and activities
performed:
The Climate Initiative: 2021-present holding community conversations on climate change
Environmental Action Team at Kennebunk high school: 2021-2022 doing beach clean-ups, working
to formulate a plan for the high school courtyard, meeting with school board

Do you have any skills, experience, or training you would like to mention?
I am doing a degree in civil and environmental engineering and learned a lot about climate change
in our community in a Gulf of Maine field studies class. I also have held community conversations

Item 18

https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/boards
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/boards-and-committees
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/node/2661/webform-results
https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees


on climate change for the Climate Initiative and was a project manager for my high school's
environmental action team.

What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board or committee?
I grew up in this community and care deeply about protecting it from climate change. I have always
felt strongly about protecting the environment, and in my Gulf of Maine field studies class I was
taught to think globally and act locally. I would love to see more community members feel inspired to
take action and recognize that we can all make a difference.

List the top 3 choices that you would like to serve on( 1. 2. 3. in desired order)?
I would like to serve on the Kennebunkport Climate Action Plan Task Force.

Source URL: https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/node/2661/submission/19716

Links
[1] https://www.kennebunkportme.gov/board-selectmen/webforms/online-application-boardscommittees


	Date: 
	undefined: 
	Residence Address: 
	Phone: 
	Phone_2: 
	Business Address 1: 
	Business Address 2: 
	Business Address 3: 
	Business Address 4: 
	What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board 1: 
	What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board 2: 
	What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board 3: 
	What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board 4: 
	Organization 1: 
	Organization 2: 
	Organization 3: 
	Organization 4: 
	Dates 1: 
	Dates 2: 
	Dates 3: 
	Dates 4: 
	Activities 1: 
	Activities 2: 
	Activities 3: 
	Activities 4: 
	Briefly list your background skills experience or training you would like to mention 1: 
	Briefly list your background skills experience or training you would like to mention 2: 
	Briefly list your background skills experience or training you would like to mention 3: 
	Briefly list your background skills experience or training you would like to mention 4: 
	Group1: Off


